
 

 

 
 

BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

April 03, 2023 

7:00 PM 

 

 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners April 03, 2023 

Page 2 of 3 

This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their meeting and all items 

found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may also, in their absolute discretion, 

consider matters not shown on this agenda. 

Special accommodations for the disabled who attend public meetings can be made by contacting the Clerk to the 

Board 24 hours in advance at 252-338-6363, Ext. 311. 

Please silence cell phones. 

Agenda 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

April 03, 2023; 7:00 PM 

Camden Public Library - Boardroom 

118 Hwy 343 North 

Call to Order 

 Closed Session - Consult with the County Attorney & Personnel 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance 

Pastor Tommy Berry, Shiloh Baptist Church 

ITEM 1. Consideration of Agenda (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement 

ITEM 3. Presentations (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Success Academy - Chudney Hill-Gregory

B. Currituck Chamber of Commerce - Josh Bass

ITEM 4. Public Comments 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of comments 

may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other issues. 

ITEM 5. Old Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. US Motto Action Committee Request - Erin Burke

ITEM 6. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Tax Report - Lisa Anderson



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  April 03, 2023 

  Page 3 of 3 

 

B. Board of Equalization & Review- Lisa Anderson 

C. 2022 Advertisement of Tax Liens on Real Property - Lisa Anderson 

D. Camden Heritage Festival Date - Erin Burke 

E. Sheriff's Office Salary Study - Erin Burke 

F. Tax & Planning Offices Relocation - Erin Burke 

Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

ITEM 7. Consent Agenda  

A. BOC Meeting Minutes 

B. Budget Amendments 

C. School Budget Amendments 

D. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

E. Tax Collection Report 

F. Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

G. 2023-2025 JCPC Grant Application 

H. Auditor Engagement Letters and Contract for Camden County & TDA 

I. Set Public Hearing - Commerce Park Property Sale 

ITEM 8. County Manager's Report 

ITEM 9. Commissioners' Reports 

ITEM 10. Information, Reports & Minutes from Other Agencies 

A. Register of Deeds Report 

B. Library Report 

C. Fire Prevention Report 

ITEM 11. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 12. Adjourn 



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 3.A 

Meeting Date:   April 03, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Erin Burke, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Success Academy 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: Success Academy Chudney Hill-Gregory will make a presentation to the Board on 

behalf of the Academy.   

3.A

Packet Pg. 4



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 3.B 

Meeting Date:   April 03, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Currituck Chamber of Commerce - Josh Bass 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: Currituck Chamber of Commerce President Josh Bass will present updated 

membership information.   

3.B

Packet Pg. 5



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Old Business 

 

Item Number: 5.A 

Meeting Date:   April 03, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   US Motto Action Committee Request - Erin Burke 

 

Attachments: Motto Invitation for Officials (DOCX) 

Motto Biography-Press Release (DOCX) 

Resolution 2023-04-01 Supporting the Display of the 

US National Motto

 (DOC) 

Motto All NC Locations Approved (XLSX) 

 
Summary: 

At the March 6, 2023 meeting, Mr. Rick Lanier with the US Motto Action Committee presented 

the attached information and requested that the Board vote to prominently display the National 

Motto, "In God We Trust" in a location of the Board's choosing.  Mr. Lanier noted that the 

Committee incurs the full cost of the displays through private donations.  Resolution 2023-04-01 

in support of displaying the National Motto is attached for the Board's consideration.   

5.A

Packet Pg. 6



Dear Honorable Elected Officials,  
 
This is an invitation to join the growing list of cities and counties that are "Voting Yes" to 
proudly and prominently display our national motto, IN GOD WE TRUST, in and on their 
governmental buildings and on law enforcement vehicles. 
  
My name is Rick Lanier and I am the Co-Founder and Field Director of the  US MOTTO 
ACTION COMMITTEE was founded in December 2002. Its sole purpose is to promote 
patriotism by encouraging elected officials to "Vote Yes" to display IN GOD WE TRUST in 
and on their governmental Buildings and on law enforcement vehicles. 
  
Displaying the Motto gives ceremonial honor to public occasions and expresses 
confidence in our society. These words have been used on US Currency since 1864. This 
inspiring slogan is engraved above the entrance of the US Senate Chamber as well as 
above the Speaker’s Seat in the US House of Representatives. On July 30, 1956, during 
the Dwight D. Eisenhower administration, the U.S. Congress adopted IN GOD WE 
TRUST as the official National Motto of the United States of America. Thus, displaying 
our Motto is a legal right, protected by the first amendment.  
 
On November 1, 2011 the U.S. House of Representatives voted overwhelmingly, 396 - 9, 
to reaffirm IN GOD WE TRUST as our nation's motto. Congressman Randy Forbes, of 
Virginia, sponsored the resolution, in part, because some have mistakenly stated that  
"E Pluribus Unum" is our national motto.  Most importantly, the resolution specifically 
encourages the placement of the motto in and on all government buildings from 
courthouses to school classrooms.  A recent survey shows that 87% of all Americans still 
support the display of our National Motto. 
 
In times of both war and peace, these words have been a profound source of strength and 
guidance to many generations of Americans. 
 
As a grassroots patriotic movement, the US MOTTO ACTION COMMITTEE stands on solid 
legal ground. Since Davidson County, North Carolina paved the way, not one legal 
challenge has been raised against any city or county that has "Voted Yes." This effort is 
legal and there is nothing to challenge!  
 
We are very pleased to announce that we are having an overwhelming success with the 
counties and cities that are readily voting "Yes” to display IN GOD WE TRUST, in or on 
their Government Building and law enforcement vehicles.  
 
Elected officials like you, are showing a commitment to the values that our country was 
founded upon. 
 
The purpose of this letter is to urge you to place us on your next possible meeting 
agenda. It would be our pleasure to incur the full cost of these displays. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
tt

o
 In

vi
ta

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

O
ff

ic
ia

ls
  (

U
S

 M
o

tt
o

 A
ct

io
n

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

eq
u

es
t 

- 
E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



Finally, we welcome you to call or contact us personally with any 
questions or encouragement we can provide. 

 
 

Thank you,  

 
Please distribute this "Letter of Invitation" 

 to your Elected Officials and other appropriate staff members via their in box or e-mail 
Thank You.  

  
  

US MOTTO ACTION COMMITTEE 

MISSION STATEMENT 

 

TO DEFEND, PROMOTE, 

AND ASSIST 

IN THE AWARENESS 

AND FURTHERANCE OF OUR 

US MOTTO, 

“IN GOD WE TRUST,” 

ON PUBLIC BUILDINGS, 

STRUCTURES, MONUMENTS, 

THE PRINTED PAGE, 

AND TO ENCOURAGE 

OUR GODLY HERITAGE 

IN VARIOUS OTHER ASPECTS. 

 
USMAC 

PO Box 1351  
Lexington, NC 27293 

E-mail usmotto02@gmail.com 

 
EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS 

 
DAVID WHITE- Chairman 336-239-0473  davidmwhite7@aol.com 

 

RICK LANIER- Field Director 336-225-9030  7thheaven@windstream.net 

   

FRED MCCLURE- Treasurer 336-249-9269  fred@fredmcclure.com 

 

PASTOR RON BAITY- Chaplain 336-785-0529  rbaity4520@aol.com 

 

MARK SMITH- Secretary  336-306-6476  MSDKSmith@icloud.com 

 

 

 
THE US MOTTO ACTION COMMITTEE 

Established 
DECEMBER 30, 2002 

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
tt

o
 In

vi
ta

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

O
ff

ic
ia

ls
  (

U
S

 M
o

tt
o

 A
ct

io
n

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

eq
u

es
t 

- 
E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)

mailto:usmotto02@gmail.com
mailto:davidmwhite7@aol.com
mailto:7thheaven@windstream.net
mailto:fred@fredmcclure.com
mailto:rbaity4520@aol.com
mailto:MSDKSmith@icloud.com


BIOGRAPHY 
 

 

We are delighted to report to you that one hundred and twenty-one (121) entities 

have voted “yes” to display “In God We Trust” in and on their government buildings. 

Thus far over 250 plus displays have been permanently installed in 68 NC counties and 

50 town halls. In addition to providing these permanent displays on public buildings, 

some 60 plus N.C. sheriff departments, 40 plus police departments, and 30 plus fire 

department fleets have installed over 3500 “In God We Trust” reflective decals on their 

vehicles. All of this is a result of the efforts by the US Motto Action Committee, which 

after procuring the approvals by the government bodies, pays for all the cost of these 

displays.  

It all began on November 26, 2002, when with a desire to promote patriotism; 

Rick Lanier led the Davidson County Board of Commissioners to publicly display “In 

God We Trust’ on the exterior of the Davidson County Governmental Center, on which 

the installation was completed December 29, 2002. December 30, 2002, Rick co-founded 

the US Motto Action Committee.  

On June 24, 2003, two ACLU funded attorneys filed a Federal lawsuit against Davidson 

County citing that the motto violated the “Separation of Church and State”. Due to the 

proactive efforts of the USMAC the Davidson County Board of Commissioners 

unanimously decided to accept the assistance of the NC Association of County 

Commissioners and fight the lawsuit, all agreeing that it was worth the fight. In May 

2004, U.S. District Court Judge William Osteen, Sr. dismissed the lawsuit, citing no 

church/state conflict. On May 13, 2005, the U.S. 4th Circuit Court of Appeals affirmed 

Judge Osteen’s opinion. Then in finality, on November 14, 2005, the U.S. Supreme Court 

refused to hear the case, thus making the 4th Circuit Court of Appeals ruling case law. 

(Ref. 407F 3d 266 Lambeth v. The Board of Commissioners of Davidson County, North 

Carolina, Case No. 04-1753 4th Circuit Court of Appeals).  

The mission statement of the USMAC is To defend, promote and assist in the 

awareness and furtherance or our U.S. motto, “In God We Trust” on public buildings, 

structures, monuments, the printed page, and to encourage our Godly Heritage in 

various other aspects. The immediate goal of the USMAC is to reach all 100 NC counties 

and as many town halls as possible with a request to prominently and proudly display our 

great motto. 

For the last 7 years we have made it our goal to tirelessly contribute many hours of 

our time in making this effort a reality. We do all this with a deeply held conviction that 

our Nation’s identity and spiritual heritage are worth the effort. Many county and city 

leaders have shared the same conviction, which has resulted in this organization’s 

overwhelming success.  

 

December 31st, 2022 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
tt

o
 B

io
g

ra
p

h
y-

P
re

ss
 R

el
ea

se
  (

U
S

 M
o

tt
o

 A
ct

io
n

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

eq
u

es
t 

- 
E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



 
 

Resolution 2023-04-01 

 

RESOLUTION BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF CAMDEN, IN 

THE STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA, SUPPORTING THE DISPLAY OF THE NATIONAL 

MOTTO “IN GOD WE TRUST” IN A PROMINENT LOCATION 

 

 

WHEREAS, “In God We Trust” became the United States national motto on July 30, 1956, shortly after 

our nation led the world through the trauma of World War II; and 

 

WHEREAS, “In God We Trust” has been used on United States currency since 1864; and 

 

WHEREAS, this inspiring motto has been an integral part of United States society since it’s founding; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the same inspiring slogan is engraved above the entrance to the Senate Chamber, as well as 

above the Speaker’s dais in the House of Representatives; and 

 

WHEREAS, in both war and peace, these words have been a profound source of strength and guidance to 

many generations of Americans; and 

 

WHEREAS, the National Anthem of the United States says, “… and this be our motto: in God is our 

trust;” and 

 

WHEREAS, the Declaration of Independence recognizes God, our Creator, as the source of our rights; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, in 2011, the United States House of Representatives passed House Concurrent Resolution 

13, which reaffirmed ‘In God We Trust” as the official motto of the United States and supported and 

encouraged the display of the national motto; and 

 

WHEREAS, a number of our presidents have written or spoken about religion and God, with President 

John F. Kennedy stating, “The guiding principle and prayer of this Nation has been, is now, and shall ever 

be “In God We Trust”; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County desires to display this patriotic motto in a way to solemnize public occasions 

and express confidence in our society. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, LET IT BE RESOLVED THAT, the Camden County Board of Commissioners 

of does hereby order that the historic and patriotic words of our national motto, “In God We Trust” shall 

be permanently and prominently displayed in a location to be determined.  

 

 

Adopted this the 3rd day of April, 2023.   

 

      ATTEST: 

 

            

Tiffney White, Chair    Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

5.A.c

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
02

3-
04

-0
1 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 t
h

e 
D

is
p

la
y 

o
f 

th
e 

U
S

 N
at

io
n

al
 M

o
tt

o
  (

U
S

 M
o

tt
o

 A
ct

io
n

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

eq
u

es
t 

- 
E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



US  MOTTO ALL NC LOCATIONS APPROVED

STATE LOCATION  COUNTY APPROVAL INSTALLATION

DATE PROGRESS

1 North Carolina Alamance County Alamance 4/6/2015 Complete

2 North Carolina Alexander County Alexander 4/13/2015 Complete

3 North Carolina Alleghany County Alleghany 8/17/2015 Complete

4 North Carolina Anson County Anson 9/12/2022 Confirmation

5 North Carolina Ashe County Ashe 1/20/2015 Complete

6 North Carolina Avery County Avery 7/6/2015 Complete

7 North Carolina Beaufort County Beaufort 9/6/2022 Confirmation

8 North Carolina Bertie County Bertie 10/17/2022 Confirmation

9 North Carolina Bladen County Bladen 6/5/2017 Phase 1 Complete

10 North Carolina Brunswick County Brunswick 1/13/2015 Complete

11 North Carolina Burke County Burke 3/7/2015 Complete

12 North Carolina Caldwell County Caldwell 6/15/2015 Complete

13 North Carolina Carteret County Carteret 9/21/2020 Complete

14 North Carolina Caswell County Caswell 3/16/2015 Complete

15 North Carolina Chatham County * Chatham 5/16/2016 Confirmation

16 North Carolina Cherokee County Cherokee 2/1/2015 Complete

17 North Carolina Clay County Clay 9/3/2015 Complete

18 North Carolina Cleveland County Cleveland 2/11/2015 Complete

19 North Carolina Columbus County Columbus 8/15/2016 Complete

20 North Carolina Craven County Craven 3/21/2022 Complete

21 North Carolina Currituck County Currituck 10/17/2022 Confirmation

22 North Carolina Davidson County Davidson 11/26/2002 Complete

23 North Carolina Davie County Davie 8/7/2006 Complete

24 North Carolina Duplin County Duplin 7/18/2022 Complete

25 North Carolina Gaston County Gaston 2/10/2015 Complete

26 North Carolina Graham County Graham 8/4/2015 Complete

27 North Carolina Granville County Granville 8/1/2016 Complete

28 North Carolina Greene County Greene 3/7/2022 Complete

29 North Carolina Halifax County Halifax 3/2/2015 Complete

30 North Carolina Harnett County Harnett 8/1/2016 Complete

31 North Carolina Henderson County Henderson 9/16/2015 Complete

32 North Carolina Iredell County Iredell 4/19/2006 Complete

33 North Carolina Johnston County Johnston 12/4/2017 Complete

34 North Carolina Lee County Lee 1/20/2021 Complete

35 North Carolina Lenior County Lenior 10/19/2020 Complete

36 North Carolina Lincoln County Lincoln 3/16/2015 Complete

37 North Carolina Macon County Macon 10/13/2015 Complete

38 North Carolina Martin County Martin 3/18/2015 Complete

39 North Carolina McDowell County McDowell 4/13/2015 Complete

40 North Carolina Mitchell County Mitchell 7/13/2015 Complete

41 North Carolina Montgomery County Montgomery 5/19/2015 Complete

5.A.d

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
tt

o
 A

ll 
N

C
 L

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

  (
U

S
 M

o
tt

o
 A

ct
io

n
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

E
ri

n
 B

u
rk

e)



42 North Carolina Moore County Moore 3/17/2015 Complete

43 North Carolina Nash County Nash 3/18/2018 Complete

44 North Carolina Pamlico County Pamlico 3/21/2022 Confirmation

45 North Carolina Pasquatank County Pasquatank 10/17/2022 Confirmation

46 North Carolina Pender County Pender 1/5/2015 Complete

47 North Carolina Person County Person 7/18/2016 Complete

48 North Carolina Polk County Polk 7/20/2015 Complete

49 North Carolina Randolph County Randolph 4/6/2015 Complete

50 North Carolina Richmond County Richmond 8/2/2016 Phase 1 Complete

51 North Carolina Robeson County Robeson 1/21/2015 Complete

52 North Carolina Rockingham County Rockingham 5/4/2015 Complete

53 North Carolina Rowan County Rowan 4/3/2006 Complete

54 North Carolina Rutherford County Rutherford 7/6/2015 Complete

55 North Carolina Scotland County Scotland 5/2/2016 Complete

56 North Carolina Stanly County Stanly 2/19/2015 Complete

57 North Carolina Stokes County Stokes 4/13/2015 Complete

58 North Carolina Surry County Surry 5/18/2015 Complete

59 North Carolina Swain County Swain 8/27/2015 Complete

60 North Carolina Tyrrell County Tyrrell 3/3/2015 Complete

61 North Carolina Union County Union 2/16/2015 Complete

62 North Carolina Vance County Vance 10/3/2016 Complete

63 North Carolina Washington County Washington 8/2/2022 Complete

64 North Carolina Watauga County Watauga 5/5/2015 Complete

65 North Carolina Wayne County Wayne 12/4/2018 Complete

66 North Carolina Wilkes County Wilkes 5/5/2015 Complete

67 North Carolina Yadkin County Yadkin 3/2/2006 Complete

68 North Carolina Yancey County Yancey 8/10/2015 Complete

STATE LOCATION COUNTY APPROVAL INSTALLATION

5.A.d

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
tt

o
 A

ll 
N

C
 L

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

  (
U

S
 M

o
tt

o
 A

ct
io

n
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

E
ri

n
 B

u
rk

e)



DATE PROGRESS

1 North Carolina Angier/Town Harnett 9/6/2016 Complete

2 North Carolina Badin/Town Stanly 9/8/2015 Complete

3 North Carolina Belville/Town Brunswick 1/26/2015 Complete

4 North Carolina Broadway/Town Lee 3/22/2021 Complete

5 North Carolina Cajah's Mtn/Town Caldwell 4/5/2016 Complete

6 North Carolina Casar/Town Cleveland 6/6/2016 Complete

7 North Carolina China Grove/Town Rowan 5/5/2015 Complete

8 North Carolina Crossnore/Town Avery 9/8/2015 Complete

9 North Carolina Denton/Town Davidson 2/2/2015 Complete

10 North Carolina Dillsboro/Town Jackson 10/12/2015 Complete

11 North Carolina Elkin/City Surry 8/10/2015 Complete

12 North Carolina Elk Park/Town Avery 8/3/2015 Complete

13 North Carolina Erwin/Town Harnett 6/7/2018 Phase 1 Complete

14 North Carolina Faith/Town Rowan 6/4/2019 Complete

15 North Carolina Forest City/Town * Rutherford 9/18/2017 Ready To order

16 North Carolina Granite Falls/Town Caldwell 9/21/2015 Complete

17 North Carolina Grover/Town Cleveland 4/9/2018 Complete

18 North Carolina Harmony/Town Iredell 3/2/2015 Complete

19 North Carolina Havelock/City Craven Confirmation

20 North Carolina Hildebran/Town Burke 8/24/2015 Complete

21 North Carolina King/City Stokes 6/6/2016 Complete

22 North Carolina King's Mountain/City Cleveland 4/28/2015 Complete

23 North Carolina Lake Lure/Town Rutherford 2/9/2016 Complete

24 North Carolina Lattimore/Town Cleveland 3/10/2015 Complete

25 North Carolina Madison/Town Rockingham 4/9/2015 Complete

26 North Carolina Maiden/Town Catawba 8/11/2020 Complete

27 North Carolina Mayodan/Town Rockingham 5/11/2015 Complete

28 North Carolina Midway/Town Davidson 4/6/2015 Complete

29 North Carolina Mocksville/Town Davie 3/5/2019 Complete

30 North Carolina Morehead City/Town Carteret 4/12/2022 Complete

31 North Carolina Murphy/City Cherokee 4/4/2016 Complete

32 North Carolina Newland/Town Avery 9/1/2015 Complete

33 North Carolina Ocean Isle Beach/Town Brunswick 6/14/2022 Complete

34 North Carolina Ramseur/Town Randolph 8/16/2022 Complete

35 North Carolina Randleman/City Randolph 1/5/2016 Complete

36 North Carolina Rhodhiss/Town Burke 7/1/2015 Complete

37 North Carolina Robbins/Town Moore 3/12/2015 Complete

38 North Carolina Rockwell/Town Rowan 3/9/2020 Complete

39 North Carolina Ronda/Town Wilkes Complete

40 North Carolina Sawmills/Town Caldwell 2/16/2016 Complete

41 North Carolina Seagrove/Town Randolph 5/3/2017 Confirmation

42 North Carolina Shelby/City Cleveland 6/6/2016 Complete

43 North Carolina Stokesdale/Town Guilford 4/14/2016 Complete

44 North Carolina Stoneville/Town Rockingham 4/7/2015 Complete

45 North Carolina Thomasville/City Davidson 7/17/2004 Complete

5.A.d

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
tt

o
 A

ll 
N

C
 L

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

  (
U

S
 M

o
tt

o
 A

ct
io

n
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

E
ri

n
 B

u
rk

e)



46 North Carolina Trinity/City Randolph 2/28/2015 Complete

47 North Carolina Troutman/City Iredell 5/14/2015 Complete

48 North Carolina Wallace/Town Duplin 1/7/2015 Complete

49 North Carolina Wallburg/Town Davidson 12/9/2014 Complete

50 North Carolina Walnut Cove/Town Stokes 1/12/2016 Complete

5.A.d

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
tt

o
 A

ll 
N

C
 L

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

  (
U

S
 M

o
tt

o
 A

ct
io

n
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
eq

u
es

t 
- 

E
ri

n
 B

u
rk

e)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.A 

Meeting Date:   April 03, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Lisa Anderson 

 
Item Title   February Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: february20230328104831199 (PDF) 

 

Summary:  February Monthly Report 

 

Recommendation:  Review and approve 

6.A

Packet Pg. 15



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 f

eb
ru

ar
y2

02
30

32
81

04
83

11
99

  (
T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 f

eb
ru

ar
y2

02
30

32
81

04
83

11
99

  (
T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 f

eb
ru

ar
y2

02
30

32
81

04
83

11
99

  (
T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 f

eb
ru

ar
y2

02
30

32
81

04
83

11
99

  (
T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 f

eb
ru

ar
y2

02
30

32
81

04
83

11
99

  (
T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 f

eb
ru

ar
y2

02
30

32
81

04
83

11
99

  (
T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 f

eb
ru

ar
y2

02
30

32
81

04
83

11
99

  (
T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 6.B 

Meeting Date:   April 03, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Board of Equalization & Review 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

Pursuant to NC General Statute 105-332(c), the hearing dates for the 2023 Board of Equalization 

and Review need to be set in order to advertise the appropriate time. 

Recommendation: 

Convene - May 1, 2023 

Adjourn - July 3, 2023 

6.B

Packet Pg. 23



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.C 

Meeting Date:   April 03, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Lisa Anderson 

 
Item Title   Tax Lien 

 

Attachments: Tax lien for commissioners20230328102832995 (PDF) 

 

Summary:  Pursuant to G .S. 105-369(a), the Tax Administrator must report to the County 

Commissioners the total amount of unpaid taxes for the current fiscal year that are liens on real 

property.  Pursuant to G. S. 105-369(c), the County Commissioners need to set the date for 

advertising the tax lien for real property.  

 

Recommendation: 

  1.  Motion to accept the attached report from the Tax Administrator that, as of March 28, 2023 

the total amount of unpaid taxes for the current fiscal year that are liens on Real Property is 

$365,308.67 and that this figure shall change over time with collections and releases.   

 

2.  Motion to set the 2022 tax liens on Real Property advertising date of April 28, 2023. 

6.C

Packet Pg. 24



6.C.a

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 li

en
 f

o
r 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

s2
02

30
32

81
02

83
29

95
  (

20
22

 A
d

ve
rt

is
em

en
t 

o
f 

T
ax

 L
ie

n
s 

o
n

 R
ea

l



6.C.a

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 li

en
 f

o
r 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

s2
02

30
32

81
02

83
29

95
  (

20
22

 A
d

ve
rt

is
em

en
t 

o
f 

T
ax

 L
ie

n
s 

o
n

 R
ea

l



6.C.a

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 li

en
 f

o
r 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

s2
02

30
32

81
02

83
29

95
  (

20
22

 A
d

ve
rt

is
em

en
t 

o
f 

T
ax

 L
ie

n
s 

o
n

 R
ea

l



6.C.a

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 li

en
 f

o
r 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

s2
02

30
32

81
02

83
29

95
  (

20
22

 A
d

ve
rt

is
em

en
t 

o
f 

T
ax

 L
ie

n
s 

o
n

 R
ea

l



6.C.a

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 li

en
 f

o
r 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

s2
02

30
32

81
02

83
29

95
  (

20
22

 A
d

ve
rt

is
em

en
t 

o
f 

T
ax

 L
ie

n
s 

o
n

 R
ea

l



6.C.a

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 li

en
 f

o
r 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

s2
02

30
32

81
02

83
29

95
  (

20
22

 A
d

ve
rt

is
em

en
t 

o
f 

T
ax

 L
ie

n
s 

o
n

 R
ea

l



6.C.a

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 li

en
 f

o
r 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

s2
02

30
32

81
02

83
29

95
  (

20
22

 A
d

ve
rt

is
em

en
t 

o
f 

T
ax

 L
ie

n
s 

o
n

 R
ea

l



6.C.a

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 li

en
 f

o
r 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

s2
02

30
32

81
02

83
29

95
  (

20
22

 A
d

ve
rt

is
em

en
t 

o
f 

T
ax

 L
ie

n
s 

o
n

 R
ea

l



6.C.a

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 li

en
 f

o
r 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

s2
02

30
32

81
02

83
29

95
  (

20
22

 A
d

ve
rt

is
em

en
t 

o
f 

T
ax

 L
ie

n
s 

o
n

 R
ea

l



6.C.a

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 li

en
 f

o
r 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

s2
02

30
32

81
02

83
29

95
  (

20
22

 A
d

ve
rt

is
em

en
t 

o
f 

T
ax

 L
ie

n
s 

o
n

 R
ea

l



6.C.a

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 li

en
 f

o
r 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

s2
02

30
32

81
02

83
29

95
  (

20
22

 A
d

ve
rt

is
em

en
t 

o
f 

T
ax

 L
ie

n
s 

o
n

 R
ea

l



6.C.a

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 li

en
 f

o
r 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

s2
02

30
32

81
02

83
29

95
  (

20
22

 A
d

ve
rt

is
em

en
t 

o
f 

T
ax

 L
ie

n
s 

o
n

 R
ea

l



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.D 

Meeting Date:   April 03, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Erin Burke, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Camden Heritage Festival - Set Date 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary:  

The Camden County Heritage Festival is planned for September 23, 2023. This falls on the fourth 

Saturday in September, but does not conflict with any known area events. Going forward it is 

recommended the third Saturday in September be reserved for the Heritage Festival. This will allow the 

public, staff, and vendors to plan for future events and will hopefully prevent conflicting events from 

being planned.  

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

6.D

Packet Pg. 37



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.E 

Meeting Date:   April 03, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Erin Burke, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Sheriff's Office Salary Study 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

At a recent Jail Board meeting a salary increase of 7% was authorized for Jail employees. Other 

area law enforcement agencies have also authorized pay increases for personnel. These salary 

changes triggered a review of salaries within the Camden County Sheriff's Office. The internal 

study examined salaries of 28 adjacent agencies. The results of the study indicate that Camden 

County Sheriff’s Office employees rank among the lowest paid in the region. The Board should 

consider salary adjustments to address current retention and future recruitment concerns.  

6.E

Packet Pg. 38



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.F 

Meeting Date:   April 03, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Erin Burke, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tax & Planning Departments Relocation 

 

Attachments: 04-03-23 Relocation  Renovation (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

As discussed and directed at the Board of Commissioners Annual Retreat, staff has begun 

examining the process and costs associated with a relocation plan for the Tax Offices and 

Planning Department, as well as the repurposing of an outbuilding on the Courthouse Campus 

for use by the Sheriff’s Office. Costs and schematics are attached for review and discussion by 

the Board. County Manager memorandum and supporting documentation attached.  

6.F

Packet Pg. 39



 
 
 
Background  
As discussed at the retreat staff has been collecting figures on the costs associated with the relocation of the Tax 
Office to the Medical Office Building, the finishing of the second floor of the administration building to 
accommodate Planning, and the repurposing of the outbuilding at the Courthouse Complex for the Sheriff’s 
Office.  
 
Sheriff’s Office Outbuilding  
Since the original discussions the and following some additional examination it has been determined that the 
outbuilding at the Courthouse Complex is better suited for an inventory management and collection area as well 
as a vehicle outfitting area. The purposed use as an evidence building led to some additional costs and it was 
deemed that it would not be the best use of this asset. The new use will provide an office space for the Resource 
Specialist as well as a consolidate inventory management space. This frees up an office in the main building as 
well as a number of storage areas and closets. It will allow the Resource Specialist better access to resources on 
hand and better ability to manage that inventory.  
 
The estimated cost for these improvements is: $27,500.00 
A detailed cost estimate has been attached.  
 
Tax & Water Offices 
Follow-up discussions with Tax and Water staff have resulted a very positive reception of this space. There are 
some minor drywall and flooring repairs to be made at the building. Additional discussions are forthcoming 
regarding security measures at the building. There will also be an additional cost for wiring. Staff should have 
those costs for the Board’s review at the Monday meeting. There will be the ability to reuse some furnishings in 
from the existing office space but some new furniture will be required. Those needs will be determined once 
offices are assigned and dimensional limitations are better understood.  
 
The estimated cost for flooring and drywall, before wiring and security is: $34,485. 
A detailed cost estimate has been attached. 
 
Planning Relocation/Admin Renovations 
The completion of the second floor of the Administration Building will include framing, drywall, windows, 
electrical, Cat6, and HVAC will allow for 4 offices, and a storage area. There will also be the addition of two 
walk up windows adjacent to the existing lobby and a secured vestibule area to control access to the building. 
 
The estimated cost for these improvements is: $100,000 
A cost estimate has been attached.  
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:   Chair White & Commissioners 
  
From:   Erin Burke, County Manager 
 
Date:  April 3, 2023 
  
RE:   Tax & Planning Relocation  
  Sheriff’s Office Outbuilding Repurposing 

6.F.a

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

4-
03

-2
3 

R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
  R

en
o

va
ti

o
n

  (
T

ax
 &

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 O
ff

ic
es

 R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
)



Summary 
Staff has reviewed these costs. Total estimated costs before unknown expenses at the proposed Tax & Water 
Offices come to $161,954.00. A contingency cost of 10% comes to $178,149.40. Staff feels comfortable that 
these projects can be completed for under $200,000.00 and that the proposed improvements will be able to 
serve the citizens and function for the employees.  
 
Next Steps 
The Board will need to authorize staff to proceed with the proposals in whole with a not to exceed amount of 
$200,000.00 

6.F.a

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

4-
03

-2
3 

R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
  R

en
o

va
ti

o
n

  (
T

ax
 &

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 O
ff

ic
es

 R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
)



6.F.a

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

4-
03

-2
3 

R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
  R

en
o

va
ti

o
n

  (
T

ax
 &

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 O
ff

ic
es

 R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
)



Page 1 of 2

ESTIMATE

Prepared For

Camden County / Attn: Chuck Jones
PO Box 190, 330 East Hwy 158

Camden, NC 27921
(252) 340-3040

Charles Meads

414 Forest Park Rd
Elizabeth City, NC 27909
Phone: (252) 202-2605
Email: obxcarpet@gmail.com
Web: www.camcicarpet.com

Estimate # 207
Date 03/17/2023

Description Rate Quantity Total

Option (1) $0.00 1 $0.00

**** I RECOMMEND this Option ****

Luxury Vinyl Planks —4 Baths & Kitchen
Carpet Tiles — All Offices,Reception Area,Hallways & Air Lock

Cove Base $250.00 8 $2,000.00

Furnish & Install Black 4”

Carpet Tiles (sf) $1.00 2,400 $2,400.00

Installation 

LVP Floating $3.00 300 $900.00

Installation 

Toilet $100.00 4 $400.00

Optional 

Prep $300.00 1 $300.00

6.F.a

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

4-
03

-2
3 

R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
  R

en
o

va
ti

o
n

  (
T

ax
 &

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 O
ff

ic
es

 R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
)

tel:(252) 202-2605
mailto:obxcarpet@gmail.com
file://www.camcicarpet.com/


Page 2 of 2

Material $10,600.00 1 $10,600.00

Carpet Tiles 55 Boxes 2640sf
Carpet Tile Adhesive 
Luxury Vinyl Planks 330sf
5 Doorway End Caps

Subtotal $16,600.00

Total $16,600.00

6.F.a

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

4-
03

-2
3 

R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
  R

en
o

va
ti

o
n

  (
T

ax
 &

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 O
ff

ic
es

 R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
)



Page 1 of 2

ESTIMATE

Prepared For

Camden County / Attn: Chuck Jones
PO Box 190, 330 East Hwy 158

Camden, NC 27921
(252) 340-3040

Charles Meads

414 Forest Park Rd
Elizabeth City, NC 27909
Phone: (252) 202-2605
Email: obxcarpet@gmail.com
Web: www.camcicarpet.com

Estimate # 208
Date 03/16/2023

Description Rate Quantity Total

Option (2) $0.00 1 $0.00

Carpet Tiles in Offices 
Luxury Vinyl Planks in Hallways,4 Baths, Reception Area,Kitchen & Air Lock

Cove Base $250.00 8 $2,000.00

Furnish & Install Black 4”

Carpet Tiles (sf) $1.00 1,440 $1,440.00

Installation 

LVP Floating $2.50 1,290 $3,225.00

Installation 

Toilet $100.00 4 $400.00

Optional 

Prep $300.00 1 $300.00

Material $13,500.00 1 $13,500.00

Carpet Tiles 33 Boxes 1584 sf
Carpet Tile Adhesive 
Luxury Vinyl Planks 1400 sf
10 Doorway End Caps 

6.F.a

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

4-
03

-2
3 

R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
  R

en
o

va
ti

o
n

  (
T

ax
 &

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 O
ff

ic
es

 R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
)

tel:(252) 202-2605
mailto:obxcarpet@gmail.com
file://www.camcicarpet.com/


Page 2 of 2

Subtotal $20,865.00

Total $20,865.00

6.F.a

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

4-
03

-2
3 

R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
  R

en
o

va
ti

o
n

  (
T

ax
 &

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 O
ff

ic
es

 R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
)



ROLLING CONSTRUCTION COMPANY

910 West Church Street

Elizabeth City, NC 27909

(252) 562‐4608

Camden County Administration Office 3/14/2023

Camden County N.C.

Medical office

front area

Frame two walls in the front waiting area. Drywall / tape /

mud / sand and paint. Frame window opening and install 

counter top with no glass. Install 36"  left hand hollow core

door with cove casing.

Install 36" arch opening ( no door) between two rooms

Frame wall with 36" solid core door with steel frame between

the front rooms and back offices. Stain door to match other 

doors. Hang dryall / tape / mud /sand.

Sheet rock opening in the bathroom / tape / mud and sand

Remove formica top and patch holes  in reception room.

back offices

Remove any wall paper / clean off glue as best as possible/

Paint hall ceiling with KILZ primer

Paint all ceilings flat white (Sherwin Williams ceiling paint)

Paint all offices and hallway using Sherwin Williams Duration)

Paint all metal casing using Sherwin Williams Emarald epoxy

Cover doors to protect from getting paint on them

Remove old rubber baseboard.

Allow 2 weeks for completion

total 17,885.00$  

6.F.a

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

4-
03

-2
3 

R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
  R

en
o

va
ti

o
n

  (
T

ax
 &

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 O
ff

ic
es

 R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
)



 

6.F.a

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 0

4-
03

-2
3 

R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
  R

en
o

va
ti

o
n

  (
T

ax
 &

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 O
ff

ic
es

 R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.A 

Meeting Date:   April 03, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_022223 (DOCX) 

bocminutes_030623 (DOCX) 

 

7.A

Packet Pg. 49



1 

 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

February 22, 2023 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

Annual Retreat 

February 22, 2023; 9:00 AM 

Taylor’s Oak Restaurant 

101 Taylor’s Lane – Camden, NC 

 

MINUTES 

 

The Camden County Board of Commissioners held its annual retreat on February 22, 2023 at the Taylor’s Oak 

Restaurant in Camden, North Carolina.   

 

Present: Chair Tiffney White, Vice Chair Ross Munro, Commissioners Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett and Troy 

Leary. 

 

Staff Present: County Manager Erin Burke and Clerk to the Board Karen Davis.   

 

Chair Tiffney White called the meeting to order at 9:00 AM.  

 

The Board received information updates on the following from County Manager Erin Burke: 

 

• Accomplishments 

⬧ Library Building 

⬧ Engineering for South Mills Waste Water Treatment Plant Expansion 

⬧ Bid Package for Well Site 4 – construction to be completed in Fall 2023 

⬧ E-Filing at Register of Deeds 

⬧ New Personnel (new positions and filled vacancies): 

▪ Two Deputies 

▪ DSS Director 

▪ Building Code Enforcement Officer 

▪ Two Permit Officers 

▪ Social Worker Supervisor 

▪ Camden County Library Branch Manager 

⬧ Heritage Festival – September 2023 

⬧ Lucia Land Lease in Camden Commerce Park  

• County Projects 

⬧ Library 

▪ Completed the Building 

• HVAC Warranty Extended  

▪ Furniture and equipment 

• Consensus of the Board was to move forward with needed items that were 

assigned cost projections and for the funding to come out of the FY 2022-2023 

budget.   

⬧ Parks & Recreation / Senior Center – Priority for new construction; Consensus of the Board was 

to move forward in getting more detailed information in order to proceed. 

⬧ One Mill Park  

⬧ Well Sites 

⬧ Wastewater Treatment Plant 

⬧ Camden County High School 

⬧ Emergency Medical Services – It was the consensus of the Board to instruct the County Manager 

to provide a cost analysis for potential Emergency Medical Services in Camden.    

⬧ Treasure Point Rural Education Center – The Board will consider a contract with Cahoon and 

Kasten Architects at the March meeting. 

• Facilities Planning – Tax & Water Offices, Evidence Storage (Sheriff), Planning Offices and 

Administration Offices 

⬧ Potential Move of Tax & Water Offices to the Camden Medical Building 

⬧ Storage garage behind Tax Office to be converted to Evidence Storage for Sheriff’s Office 

⬧ Potential move of Planning Offices to Administration Building first floor; Second floor to be 

finished to house offices of County Manager, Clerk and Finance.  

⬧ The consensus of the Board was to move forward with acquiring cost estimates for the potential 

office relocations as discussed.   

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
22

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



2 

 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

February 22, 2023 

⬧ After some debate in regard to the potential demolition of the current Tax and Planning building, 

there were four commissioners (White, Aydlett, Munro and Leary) in favor of acquiring estimates; one 

commissioner (Krainiak) not in favor.  The majority were in favor of using the space for parking.   

• Pending Development Projects 

⬧ Camden Lakes – 1772 Dwellings 

⬧ Keeter Barn – 37 Dwellings 

⬧ South Mills Landing – 567 Dwellings 

⬧ North River Crossing – 7 Dwellings (remaining to be built) 

⬧ Camden Station – 39 Dwellings 

⬧ Meadows at North River Crossing – 23 Dwellings  

• Contracts & Leases 

⬧ Leases 

▪ Success Academy 

▪ Pasquotank County Yacht Club 

▪ Mercer Farm 

▪ Shiloh Courthouse Fire Commission Lease with Forestry Service 

▪ Lucia Specialized Hauling of Virginia 

▪ Mangum 

▪ Vanguard Mobile Office lease (Cooperative Extension / Soil and Water) 

⬧ Contracts 

▪ Eastern Albemarle Regional Library Agreement 

▪ Fire Inspections 

▪ 911 Communications 

▪ Emergency Medical Services 

• Grants 

⬧ American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) - $2,133,610.33 

⬧ Opioid Settlement Fund - $57,893.18 (very specific allowable uses)   

⬧ One Mill Park - $100,000 

⬧ Parks and Recreation Trust Fund (PARTF) - $452,000 

⬧ Sentara Cares - $10,000 (x 2) 

⬧ Local Assistance & Tribal Consistency Fund - $90,000 

⬧ Sheriff’s Office Public Safety Grants 

• Staffing 

⬧ Current Vacancies 

▪ Income Maintenance Caseworker  

▪ Buildings & Grounds Maintenance Worker 

⬧ Upcoming Openings 

▪ Chief Building Inspector 

▪ Part-time Elections Specialist 

⬧ Future Positions 

▪ EMS Director 

▪ Sheriff’s Office 

▪ Maintenance Worker 

▪ Income Maintenance Caseworker – Possibility due to Medicaid expansion 

⬧ Benefits 

▪ Salary Adjustments 

▪ Cost of Living Adjustment 

▪ Insurance – BCBS Premiums 

▪ Wellness Plan – YMCA Membership 

▪ Healthcare Spending Card 

▪ Holidays 

▪ Holiday Bonus 

• Looking Forward 

⬧ Strategic Planning (6-month process) 

▪ Develop a vision for Camden County. 

▪ Set goals based on the vision. 

▪ Enact initiatives based on the goals. 

▪ Evaluate the performance. 

 

 

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
22

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



3 

 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 

February 22, 2023 

⬧ Land Use Planning 

▪ NC General Statute 160D-501(a)(1) calls for a comprehensive plan that “sets forth goals, 

policies, and programs intended to guide the present and future physical, social and 

economic development of the jurisdiction”, or a land-use plan that “uses text and maps to 

designate the future use or reuse of land.”  Additionally, the statute states that “[a] 

comprehensive plan or land-use plan is intended to guide coordinated, efficient and 

orderly development within the planning and development regulation jurisdiction based 

on an analysis of present and future needs.  Planning analysis may address inventories of 

existing conditions and assess future trends regarding demographics and economic, 

environmental and cultural factors.”   

⬧ Capital Improvement Planning 

▪ Water Infrastructure 

▪ Waste Water Expansion 

▪ High School 

▪ Broadband 

▪ Treasure Point Rural Education Center 

▪ Parks & Recreation / Senior Center  

• FY 2023-2024 Budget Items of Note 

⬧ Planning 

⬧ Revaluation 

⬧ School Construction 

⬧ Parks & Recreation / Senior Center 

⬧ Water Infrastructure 

⬧ Vehicle Replacement 

⬧ Staffing 

⬧ Website Upgrade 

• Upcoming Potential Projects for Consideration 

⬧ South Mills Convenience Center Site 

⬧ Convenience Centers Decal Requirement 

⬧ North end field office for Sheriff’s Office 

• Other Matters 

⬧ Shiloh Convenience Center Site – Consensus of the Board was to close the ‘swap shop’ 

permanently. 

 

There being no further matters for discussion the Board adjourned at 3:10 PM. 

 

 

 

 

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
22

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



1 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

March 6, 2023 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

March 6, 2023 

Closed Session – 6:30 PM 

Regular Meeting – 7:00 PM 

Camden Public Library Boardroom 

118 Hwy 343 North 

 

MINUTES 

A Regular Meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held on March 6, 2023 in the boardroom of 

the Camden Public Library in Camden, North Carolina.   

 

CALL TO ORDER  

The meeting was called to order by Chair Tiffney White at 6:30 PM.  Also Present: Commissioners Sissy Aydlett 

and Troy Leary.  Administration Staff Present: County Manager Erin Burke and Clerk to the Board Karen Davis.  

Commissioner Randy Krainiak was absent and Vice Chair Ross Munro joined the Regular Meeting at 7:00 PM via 

conference call, as allowed by the Board’s Remote Participation Policy.   

 

Motion to go into Closed Session to discuss personnel and economic development. 

RESULT: PASSED [3-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tiffney White, Sissy Aydlett, Troy Leary 

ABSENT: Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak 

 

Motion to come out of Closed Session. 

RESULT: PASSED [3-0] 

MOVER: Sissy Aydlett 

AYES: Tiffney White, Sissy Aydlett, Troy Leary 

ABSENT: Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak 

 

The Board came out of Closed Session at 6:50 PM and recessed until 7:00 PM, at which time the Board was 

reconvened by Chair White.   

 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Pastor Joe Brock gave the invocation and the Board led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

ITEM 1.  CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA        

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [4-0] 

MOVER: Troy Leary 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Sissy Aydlett, Troy Leary 

ABSENT: Randy Krainiak  

 

ITEM 2.  CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT     

 

Clerk to the Board Karen Davis read the Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement. 

 

ITEM 3.  PRESENTATIONS          

 

A. Employee Recognition 

 

• Human Resources Director Beverly Fonville recognized Lieutenant Brandon Henderson for 5 years of 

service with Camden County.  

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

03
06

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



2 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

March 6, 2023 

• Retiring Chief Deputy Meads was recognized by the Board of Commissioners and the Sheriff’s Office 

for his 23 years of service with Camden County. 

 

B. NC Cooperative Extension 

 

Camden County Extension Director Austin Brown presented the 2022 Report to the People video, highlighting the 

accomplishments of Extension staff during 2022.  Mr. Brown also announced Marcia Berry as the new Camden 

County 4-H & Youth Development Agent and Shelby Figueroa as the new 4-H Program Assistant/JCPC 

Coordinator.   

 

C. US Motto Action Committee  

 

Mr. Rick Lanier of the US Motto Action Committee presented to the Board a request to display the national motto, 

In God We Trust, on or in the County’s governmental buildings.  The full cost of the display is incurred by the US 

Motto Action Committee through funds raised by various donors.  No action was taken by the Board at that time.   

 

ITEM 4.  PUBLIC COMMENTS          

 

Mr. John Woodward of Cutters Lane, Elizabeth City, addressed the Board and asked that the Board approve the 

request of the US Motto Action Committee to display the US Motto in the County’s governmental buildings.  

 

ITEM 5.  NEW BUSINESS          

 

A. Tax Report – Lisa Anderson 

 

 
 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

03
06

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



3 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

March 6, 2023 

 
 

30 Largest Unpaid – Real 

 
 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Real 

 
 

 

 

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

03
06

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



4 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

March 6, 2023 

30 Largest Unpaid – Personal 

 
 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Personal 

 
 

Motion to approve the Tax Report as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [4-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Sissy Aydlett, Troy Leary 

ABSENT: Randy Krainiak 

 

B. Treasure Point Rural Education Center  

 

County Manager Erin Burke presented a contract for design and construction management services with Cahoon & 

Kasten Architects of Nags Head, NC for the design and construction of the Treasure Point Park Rural Education 

Center.  The contract is a design build contract and will include the fees outlined for work with Cahoon & Kasten, as 

well as engineering services with Timmons Group of Elizabeth City, NC and geotechnical work by Terracon of 

Elizabeth City, NC.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

03
06

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



5 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

March 6, 2023 

Contract Summary: 

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

03
06

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



6 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

March 6, 2023 

Motion to approve the agreement with Cahoon and Kasten for the provision of design development and 

construction administration for the Treasure Point Rural Education Center and to authorize the County 

Manager to sign the contract.   

RESULT: PASSED [4-0] 

MOVER: Sissy Aydlett 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Sissy Aydlett, Troy Leary 

ABSENT: Randy Krainiak 

 

C. South Mills Water Association Letters of Request  

 

County Manager Erin Burke presented letters of request from South Mills Water Association along with the 

following staff recommendations: 

 

1. South Mills Landing 

 

   
 

In accordance with section 9 of the development agreement signed and recorded February 15, 2021 between 

Camden County and South Mill Landing, LLC, the County agreed to the sale of water by South Camden Water & 

Sewer District to South Mills Water Association (SMWA) for resale to South Mills Landing. The agreed-upon 

allocation is 200 gallons per day (gpd) per dwelling. SMWA is requesting an allocation in the amount of 26,000 gpd 

for the first phase of development. 

 

Staff has reviewed the request and recommends approval in accordance with the terms outlined in the 

aforementioned development agreement.  

 

Motion to approve the sale of 26,000 gallons of water per day to the South Mills Water Association for the 

first phase of development of South Mills Landing.  

RESULT: PASSED [4-0] 

MOVER: Sissy Aydlett 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Sissy Aydlett, Troy Leary 

ABSENT: Randy Krainiak 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

03
06

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



7 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

March 6, 2023 

2. Wharf’s Landing Phase II 

 

 
 

Wharf’s Landing Phase I was recorded with the Register of Deeds on January 30, 2002. Phase I was platted 

following a rezoning that was part of a larger piece of property which included future phases.  However, those 

phases were not approved as part of a larger master plan with a development agreement. The developer will need to 

begin the subdivision process for Phase II for there to be an allocation put into reserve for the proposed 150 homes.  

 

Staff has reviewed the request and recommends denial of the request as there is not a development agreement in 

place, nor an existing platted subdivision.  

 

Motion to deny this request as there is not a development agreement in place, nor an existing platted 

subdivision. 

RESULT: PASSED [4-0] 

MOVER: Sissy Aydlett 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Sissy Aydlett, Troy Leary 

ABSENT: Randy Krainiak 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

03
06

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



8 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

March 6, 2023 

3. Emergency Water Supply Agreement 

 

 
 

The Board of Commissioners met during an Emergency Meeting on February 3, 2023 in accordance with NCGS 

143-318.12(b)(3) to provide water to SMWA on an emergency basis due to a power failure at their plant. Camden 

County is openly committed to ensuring the residents of the County have reliable access to potable water even under 

emergency circumstances. 

 

Staff has reviewed this request and recommends the Board continue to use the Emergency Meeting procedures 

pursuant to NCGS 143-318.12(b)(3) in order to consider emergency water allocations on a case-by-case basis and 

deny the request to enter into a standing emergency agreement.  

 

Motion to consider emergency water allocations on a case-by-case basis and deny the request to enter into a 

standing emergency agreement. 

RESULT: PASSED [4-0] 

MOVER: Sissy Aydlett 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Sissy Aydlett, Troy Leary 

ABSENT: Randy Krainiak 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

03
06

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



9 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

March 6, 2023 

4. South Mills Village  

 

  
 

Camden County is openly committed to ensuring the residents of the County have reliable access to potable water. 

The request to permanently provide water to SMWA for service to their entire customer base creates a profit-making 

enterprise. SMWA pays a nominal bulk water rate to South Camden Water & Sewer District and sells the same 

water at a considerable profit to their customers. 

 

Staff has reviewed this request and recommends denial, as it is not the intent to support a private entity making a 

profit on the provision of a public service. 

 

Motion to deny the request as it is not the intent of the County to support a private entity making a profit on 

the provision of a public service. 

RESULT: PASSED [4-0] 

MOVER: Sissy Aydlett 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Sissy Aydlett, Troy Leary 

ABSENT: Randy Krainiak 

 

D. Resolution 2023-03-01 Approving Supplemental Opioid Settlement – Erin Burke 

 

The North Carolina Department of Justice announced five new opioid settlements with CVS, Walgreens, Walmart, 

Allergen and Teva.  The distribution formula will mirror the original MOA allocation model outlined in the first 

settlement agreement, which Camden County signed in 2021.  The proposed resolution authorizes staff to sign the 

settlement documents.   

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

03
06

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



10 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

March 6, 2023 

 
 

Motion to approve Resolution 2023-03-01 and authorize the County Attorney to execute all documents 

necessary to enter into the additional opioid settlement agreement as presented.   

RESULT: PASSED [4-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Sissy Aydlett, Troy Leary 

ABSENT: Randy Krainiak 

 

ITEM 6.  BOARD APPOINTMENTS         

 

A. Tourism Development Authority – Reappointment of Sarah Hill as Chair 

B. Library Board – Appointment of Katie Koch 

 

Motion to approve the board appointments as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [4-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Sissy Aydlett, Troy Leary 

ABSENT: Randy Krainiak 

 

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors       

 

Chair White recessed the Board of Commissioners and called to order the South Camden Water & Sewer District 

Board of Directors Meeting.   

 

Public Comments – None 

 

Consideration of the Agenda  

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

03
06

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



11 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

March 6, 2023 

RESULT: PASSED [4-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Sissy Aydlett, Troy Leary 

ABSENT: Randy Krainiak 

 

New Business 

A. Monthly Report – Chuck Jones 

 

 
 

 
 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

03
06

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



12 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

March 6, 2023 

 
 

 
 

Motion to approve the monthly report as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [4-0] 

MOVER: Troy Leary 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Sissy Aydlett, Troy Leary 

ABSENT: Randy Krainiak 

 

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

03
06

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



13 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

March 6, 2023 

Motion to adjourn South Camden Water & Sewer Board of Directors. 

RESULT: PASSED [4-0] 

MOVER: Sissy Aydlett 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Sissy Aydlett, Troy Leary 

ABSENT: Randy Krainiak 

 

Chair White adjourned the South Camden Water & Sewer Board of Directors and reconvened the Board of 

Commissioners. 

 

ITEM 7.  CONSENT AGENDA          

 

A. BOC Meeting Minutes  

• February 3, 2023 

• February 6, 2023 

• February 13, 2023 

 

B. Budget Amendments  

 

   
 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

03
06

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



14 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

March 6, 2023 

C. School Budget Amendments 

 

   
 

     

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

03
06

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



15 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

March 6, 2023 

 
 

D. DMV Monthly Report 

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

03
06

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



16 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

March 6, 2023 

 

E. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

 
 

F. Tax Refunds Over $100 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

03
06

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



17 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

March 6, 2023 

G. Tax Collection Report 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

03
06

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



18 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

March 6, 2023 

H. Vehicle Refunds Over $100 

 

 
 

I. American Rescue Plan Act Policies – Herein incorporated by reference, on file in the Finance Office. 

 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [4-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Sissy Aydlett, Troy Leary 

ABSENT: Randy Krainiak 

 

ITEM 8. COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT        

County Manager Erin Burke included the following in her report: 

 

• Attended the following meetings: 

▪ JCPC Meeting 

▪ NC Division of Information Technology Zoom Meeting 

▪ Ministers’ Advisory Council 

▪ Pasquotank Camden EMS Quarterly Meeting 

• Facilities Planning Coordination with department heads 

• Courthouse sewer line extension under the railroad tracks 

• JCPC Coordinator interviews 

• Revaluation Meeting with Tax Administrator; notices to be mailed in April 

• Annual Retreat preparation and debrief 

• Salary & staffing discussions with the Sheriff 

• Met with lobbyist to discuss water and infrastructure needs 

• Highlighted The Golden Times, Senior Center Newsletter 

 

 

 

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

03
06

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



19 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

March 6, 2023 

ITEM 9. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS         

 

Commissioner Aydlett included the following in her report: 

• The Board of Commissioners held its Annual Retreat in February and was a very productive meeting. 

• Attended a meeting of Albemarle Regional Health Services. 

• Participated in a ride-along with the Sheriff’s. 

• Attended the Pasquotank Camden EMS meeting with Chair White. 

• Attended a meeting at the Albemarle Commission and learned a great deal about all the Commission does.   

 

Chair White added that things are going in a good direction for the County.   

 

ITEM 10. INFORMATION, REPORTS & MINUTES FROM OTHER AGENCIES    

 

Included for information only: 

 

A. Register of Deeds Report 

 

 
 

 
 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

03
06

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



20 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

March 6, 2023 

B. Library Report – Kim Perry 

 

 
 

ITEM 11. OTHER MATTERS          

 

None. 

 

ITEM 12. ADJOURN           

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chair White adjourned the meeting at 7:45 PM. 

 

      ATTEST: 

 

            

Tiffney White, Chair    Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

03
06

23
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.B 

Meeting Date:   April 03, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Stephanie Jackson 

 
Item Title   Budget Amendments 

 

Attachments: 22-23 BA 033 Grants Funds for the Fire Departments

 (DOC) 

22-23 BA 034 Open Position & Add'l Funds for JCPC 

Van (DOC) 

 

7.B

Packet Pg. 73



                                                       2022-23-BA033 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2023. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

     

Revenues  

40360530-434810 Grant        $25,000 

41360530-434815 Grant        25,000 

   

Expenses  

405300-574400          Grant Purchases     25,000 

415300-574108          Grant Equipment     25,000 

 

This Budget Amendment is to appropriate additional monies received from North Carolina 

State Grants for the Fire Departments in the County.         

 

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 3rd  day of April, 2023. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chair, Board of Commissioners 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

2-
23

 B
A

 0
33

 G
ra

n
ts

 F
u

n
d

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
F

ir
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

  (
B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



                                                       2022-23-BA034 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2023. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

     

Expenses  

106200-502000  Salaries          $8,199.10 

106200-505000  FICA          $   629.84 

106200-506000  Health Insurance         $1,646.58 

106200-506200  Employer Paid Life Insurance       $     18.14 

106200-507000  Retirement          $1,095.12 

106200-507100  401(k)          $1,011.22 

106200-509000  Workers Compensation        $   125.00 

106200-510000  Training          $   690.00 

106200-511000  Telephone/Postage         $   540.00 

106200-514000  Travel          $   500.00 

106200-519500  Youth Program Materials        $3,000.00 

106200-531000  Gas & Oil          $   400.00 

106200-567000  Camp          $1,000.00 

106200-574000  Capital Outlay    $18,855.00 

 

This Budget Amendment is to appropriate additional salary monies from an open position 

to the Capital Outlay line along with some unused dollars in other lines, in order to 

purchase a used van to replace the current van. (Existing van will be traded in- this is grant 

funding that has to be spent on JCPC programming or expenses specific to that purpose)  

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 3rd  day of April, 2023. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chair, Board of Commissioners 

 

7.B.b

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

2-
23

 B
A

 0
34

 O
p

en
 P

o
si

ti
o

n
 &

 A
d

d
'l 

F
u

n
d

s 
fo

r 
JC

P
C

 V
an

  (
B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.C 

Meeting Date:   April 03, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Schools 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   School Budget Amendments 

 

Attachments: School Budget Amendments (PDF) 

 

7.C

Packet Pg. 76



7.C.A

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



7.C.A

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



7.C.A

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



7.C.A

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



7.C.A

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



7.C.A

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



7.C.A

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.D 

Meeting Date:   April 03, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

Attachments: Pickups, Releases & Refunds (PDF) 

 

7.D

Packet Pg. 84



7.D.a

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

 (
P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.E 

Meeting Date:   April 03, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tax Collection Report 

 

Attachments: Tax Collection Report (PDF) 

 

7.E

Packet Pg. 86



7.E.a

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

T
ax

 C
o

lle
ct

io
n

 R
ep

o
rt

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.F 

Meeting Date:   April 03, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: Feb, 23 Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 (PDF) 

 

Summary:   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 for February, 23  

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

7.F

Packet Pg. 88



7.F.a

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

eb
, 2

3 
V

eh
ic

le
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0 

 (
V

eh
ic

le
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.G 

Meeting Date:   April 03, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   2023-2025 JCPC Grant Application 

 

Attachments: 2023 JCPC Grant App (PDF) 

 

7.G

Packet Pg. 90



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 12/31/2012
Department of Public Safety

North Carolina Department of Public Safety
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention

JCPC Program - Program Application

SECTION I A:  SPONSORING AGENCY AND PROGRAM INFORMATION

FUNDING PERIOD: FY 23-24 DPS/JCPC FUNDING # (cont only) 715-XXXX

COUNTY: Camden AREA: Eastern Area

Multi-County: No Multi-Components: Yes

NAME OF PROGRAM: Camden County Youth Services

SPONSORING AGENCY: Camden County

SPONSORING AGENCY 
PHYSICAL ADDRESS:

330 East Hwy 158  
Camden NC 27921

SPONSORING AGENCY 
MAILING ADDRESS:

PO Box 190  
Camden NC 27921

TYPE: Public FEDERAL ID # 56-600282

 COMPONENT ID # NAME OF PROGRAM COMPONENT PROGRAM TYPE TOTAL COST OF 
EACH COMPONENT

38179 Community Service Restitution/Community Service $ 8,416

38180 Camp BLUE (Building Leaders and Urging 
Excellence

Experiential Skill Building $ 35,780

38181 Teen Court Teen Court $ 12,966

38182 C.R.O.W.N. Kids & B.E.A.R.S. Interpersonal Skill Building $ 37,446

Total cost of components: $ 94,608

Program Manager Name & Address (same person on signature page)

Name: Erin Burke Title: County Manager

Mailing 
Address:

330 East Highway 158

City: Camden Zip: 27921PO Box 190

Phone: (252) 338-6363 Fax: (252) 331-7831 E-mail: eburke@camdencountync.gov

Contact Person (if different from program manager)

Name: Marcia  Berry Title: 4-H Agent

Mailing 
Address:

120 N Carolina Hwy 343 S

City: Camden Zip: 27921 

Phone: (252) 331-7630 Fax:  E-mail: marcia_berry@ncsu.edu

Program Fiscal Officer (cannot be program manager)

Name: Stephanie Jackson Title: Camden County Finance Officer

Mailing 
Address:

330 East Highway 158

City: Camden Zip: 27921PO Box 190

Phone: (252) 338-6363 Fax: (252) 331-7831 E-mail: sjackson@camdencountync.gov

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 12/31/2012
Department of Public Safety

SECTION I B:  PROGRAM COMPONENT DESCRIPTION

COMPONENT ID # COMPONENT INFORMATION

38179 NAME OF COMPONENT: Community Service
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Provides youth offenders with positive consequences to negative 
behavior based on court ordered requirements thus holding them accountable for their actions. 
Victim restitution and community service is an effective program for reducing recidivism. 
Juveniles are provided a constructive supervised work environment where they may fulfill the 
requirements of their diversion plan/contract or court order.

COMPONENT ID # COMPONENT INFORMATION

38180 NAME OF COMPONENT: Camp BLUE (Building Leaders and Urging Excellence
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: A summer program for youth providing hands-on educational activities, 
life skill development, vocational skills, and social skill building lessons in safe, supervised 
environments during a portion of the summer months. Programs include State 4-H Summer 
Camp (Experiential Skills); Life Skill camps for older youth (Vocational and Life Skills); Teen 
Leadership Training with a stipend (Vocational Skills); and Small group summer support 
(Interpersonal Skills, Experiential Skills).

COMPONENT ID # COMPONENT INFORMATION

38181 NAME OF COMPONENT: Teen Court
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Teen Court is a diversion resource for juvenile intake, district court, 
SROs and other local law enforcement. It is a structured component where non-violent, 
misdemeanor offenders admitting guilt are given the option to plead their case before a jury of 
trained peers, youth volunteers who then provide a constructive sentence. Upon successful 
completion, the referring agency is notified.

COMPONENT ID # COMPONENT INFORMATION

38182 NAME OF COMPONENT: C.R.O.W.N. Kids & B.E.A.R.S.
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: An interpersonal skill building and experiential learning component 
where youth increase life skills development, social skills, and have positive interactions with 
others during school hours, after school, and during school holiday/breaks. Program utilizes 
research-based 4-H and youth development curriculum from land grant universities to teach 
skills based on the Targeting Life Skills Model.

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 01/09/2012
Department of Public Safety

SECTION II:  COMPONENT STATISTICAL INFORMATION

Multi-Components Yes

Component Service Statistics PROGRAM COMPONENT INFORMATION - APPLICATION YEAR

Component Name: Community Service Component ID #

 38179
What is this component's maximum client capacity at any given time? 5

Frequency of client contact per month:
2

Anticipated Average Length of 
Stay:

90 Days

Total Component Cost: $8,416 ÷  by Estimated # to be served during funding period: 5
Estimated Average Cost Per Youth: $1,683

Applies to 
continuation 

programs only.

Actual number of youth admitted FY 21-22: 8

3 Number of admissions Juvenile Justice Referred 37.5% of total admissions
0 Number of admissions Law Enforcement Referred 0% of total admissions
0 Number of admissions District Court Referred 0% of total admissions

Actual number served FY 21-22: 10

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 12/31/2012
Department of Public Safety

SECTION III:  COMPONENT SUMMARY

NAME OF COMPONENT: Community Service

1. Statement of the Problem:  In concise terminology, describe how the program will address continuum need(s) in 
the county.

Community service/victim restitution is a needed service for diverted, Level I and II adjudicated juveniles, and is a 
sentencing option regularly utilized by the Juvenile Court to hold youth offenders accountable for their actions.  This 
program will serve the juvenile offenders in Camden County in order that they may have local assignments to complete 
court ordered community service requirements.  The program may also serve diverted juveniles as referred.

2. Target Population:  Describe the target population, including age, and the steps taken to insure that the target 
population is served.

Camden County youth between the ages of 6-18 are eligible to participate in the program upon referral.

3. Program Goal(s):  Provide a brief statement to describe the overall purpose of the program.

To enable youth offenders to complete diversion requirements and court ordered community service hours, as well as 
victim compensation in the local area, thereby benefiting the community as well as the juvenile.

4. Measurable Objective(s):  State in measurable terms (%) the intended effect of the program on specific 
undisciplined and/or delinquent behaviors. Example: anticipated reductions in court referrals, runaway behavior, 
disruptive behavior at school, anticipated improved school attendance and academic achievement. These objectives 
must include impact on participants.

75% Clients will successfully or satisfactorily complete services as intended by the program design/service plan.
75% Clients will complete restitution or community service within the timeframe permitted by JCPC policy.
75% Clients will demonstrate accountability by actively participating in restitution/community service activities.
75% Clients will have no new complaints with an offense date after the admission date.
75% Clients successfully/satisfactorily completing the program will have no new complaints in the 12 months following 
completion.
75% Clients successfully/satisfactorily completing the program will have no new adjudications in the 12 months 
following completion.
75% Clients will have no new adjudications for a complaint with an offense date after the admission date.

5. Elevated Risks and Needs:  Describe how program services will address one or more of the elevated risk and 
needs listed in the most recent JCPC Request for Proposal.

School behavior problems, prior referrals to court, prior assault, and substance abuse issues are local factors in 
increasingly delinquent behaviors.  When a delinquent juvenile is ordered to complete community service they will be 
enrolling in a program that will give them avenues to prevent future delinquent behavior.  These avenues include: 
holding them accountable for their delinquent acts, surrounding them with positive role models, and giving them access 
to opportunities within their community to have a positive impact.

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 12/31/2012
Department of Public Safety

SECTION IV:  COMPONENT NARRATIVE (attach for each component)

NAME OF COMPONENT: Community Service

1. Location:  List physical address(es) and describe where program services are delivered.

Camden Extension Office 120 N Carolina Hwy 343 N, approved volunteer work sites within Camden County and 
neighboring counties as appropriate.

2. Operation:  Describe the daily/weekly schedule of program operation.

The Program Coordinator works Monday - Friday, 8 AM to 5 PM.  Daily/weekly schedules will be determined on a case 
by case basis and coordinated with volunteer worksites.

3. Staff Positions:  Describe paid or volunteer position qualifications, (certifications, degrees, work experience) and 
position(s) responsibilities relative to this component.

The position of the Camden County Program Coordinator (full-time) prefers a Bachelor's degree in human services, or 
related field, and experience working with juveniles and at-risk youth, or equivalent combination of education and 
experience.  A valid NC Driver's License is required.  Coordinator is responsible for accepting and processing referrals; 
arranging community worksites; maintaining confidential files; ALLIES client tracking; submission and notification to the 
referral source upon completion of community service & termination of juvenile from program; and other DJJ policy 
requirements. 

The Camden County 4-H Agent serves as the supervisor and program contact for the JCPC program. In the absence 
of a 4-H agent the County Extension director will oversee the JCPC program. The Camden County Finance Officer 
serves as the program fiscal officer.

Site supervisors must complete a program agreement and Volunteer application and have a criminal background 
check administered prior to volunteering in any Camden County 4-H Program.

4. Service Type SPEP:  Describe implementation to include:

Primary Service: Restitution / Community Service; Secondary Service: None

5. Admission Process:  Describe the specific referral, screening, admission process (including timeline), the staff 
responsible for making decisions about admissions and reasons why a referral may not be accepted.

The Program Coordinator will accept and review referrals from court counselors and Teen Court.  At admission, a visit 
will be arranged with the juvenile and their parent/guardians to explain program details, rules, and available work site 
options.  A referral may not be accepted if the parent/guardians refuse to allow their child to participate at which time 
the referral source will be notified immediately.

6. Termination Process:  Describe the termination process to include the staff responsible for making decisions and 
the criteria for a successful termination, satisfactory termination, unsuccessful completion and non-compliant 
termination.

Referral source(s), and parent/guardians will be notified by the Program Coordinator when the juvenile is terminated 
from the program.

A successful termination will result when a juvenile has completed all necessary community service hours with no 
problems.

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 12/31/2012
Department of Public Safety

SECTION IV:  COMPONENT NARRATIVE (attach for each component)

NAME OF COMPONENT: Community Service

A satisfactory termination will result when a juvenile has completed all necessary community service hours with few 
problems and/or negative comments from work site supervisors.

An unsuccessful termination will result when a juvenile fails to complete all necessary community service hours during 
time allowed.

A non-compliant termination will result when a juvenile and/or parent/guardian refuses to participate in the program as 
specified during the initial admission visit.

How is the referring agency involved with the termination process?

The referring agency will be notified of all successful and satisfactory terminations after the fact.  

The referring agency will be contacted before an unsuccessful or non-compliant termination is processed as a 
courtesy, and to get the child/parent to comply with program requirements.

7. Referring Agency Interaction:  Describe the interaction with juvenile court counselors and/or other referring 
agencies including how client progress will be communicated.

Referring agencies will be taught how to complete the referral form.  The Program Coordinator will be available for all 
referral sources to call, email, or visit to answer questions or address concerns.  Referrals may be mailed, e-mailed, 
faxed or delivered in person.  Contact with the referral sources will be ongoing during the duration of the juvenile's 
involvement in the program.

8. Intervention/Treatment:  Describe specifically what the component will do to redirect inappropriate youth behavior 
or how the component will address the identified needs of the youth and family. What interventions will typically be 
utilized in this component and how will parents/guardians be involved?

The Community Service Program will provide participants with the opportunity to take responsibility for their actions 
and complete community service hours. The Program Coordinator serves as a positive role model and will encourage 
participants to continue their civic involvement through 4-H and other positive youth development programs upon the 
completion of their requirements.

9. Best Practice Model:  Describe what model or evidence-supported/best practice the program is based upon.

Community service has been found to be an effective juvenile justice program made slightly more effective by adding 
behavior management elements in the contract.  A service agreement document is utilized with this program to identify 
work obligations and expectations of proper behavior, projecting a reasonable timeline for completion. The Coordinator 
monitors progress toward completion of the contract.

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 01/09/2012
Department of Public Safety

SECTION II:  COMPONENT STATISTICAL INFORMATION

Multi-Components Yes

Component Service Statistics PROGRAM COMPONENT INFORMATION - APPLICATION YEAR

Component Name: Camp BLUE (Building Leaders and Urging Excellence Component ID #

 38180
What is this component's maximum client capacity at any given time? 12

Frequency of client contact per month:
12

Anticipated Average Length of 
Stay:

30 Days

Total Component Cost: $35,780 ÷  by Estimated # to be served during funding period: 20
Estimated Average Cost Per Youth: $1,789

Applies to 
continuation 

programs only.

Actual number of youth admitted FY 21-22: 18

0 Number of admissions Juvenile Justice Referred 0% of total admissions
0 Number of admissions Law Enforcement Referred 0% of total admissions
0 Number of admissions District Court Referred 0% of total admissions

Actual number served FY 21-22: 18

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 12/31/2012
Department of Public Safety

SECTION III:  COMPONENT SUMMARY

NAME OF COMPONENT: Camp BLUE (Building Leaders and Urging Excellence

1. Statement of the Problem:  In concise terminology, describe how the program will address continuum need(s) in 
the county.

There are children in Camden County that lack the social and interpersonal skills necessary to foster self-discipline and 
positive behaviors at home and in the community.  These children are often left unattended during summer vacation 
from school and may lack necessary adult supervision. The Camden County Summer Program will address the need 
for enrichment and skill building services in the summer months, targeting juveniles with identified risk factors such as 
school behavior problems, prior referrals to court, substance abuse and prior assault issues.

2. Target Population:  Describe the target population, including age, and the steps taken to insure that the target 
population is served.

Camden County youth ages 8 to 18 (youth must have not graduated high school) are eligible for service.  Youth will be 
served in developmentally appropriate groups offering a variety of opportunities throughout the summer. Priority 
placement will be given to those who exhibit at-risk behaviors as described above and/or those referred to the program 
from juvenile court counselors, SROs, school staff, parents or other community agencies.

3. Program Goal(s):  Provide a brief statement to describe the overall purpose of the program.

Program participants will be provided with adult supervision and enrichment activities during summer vacation from 
school. Younger campers will have the opportunity to participate in experiential and interpersonal skill building through 
workshops, 4-day long day camps, and overnight camping at the 4-H Eastern Center. Older youth will have the 
opportunity to participate in 4-day long life skills camp and challenge-course camps emphasizing vocational skills, and 
special overnight camps at the 4-H Eastern Center. Older youth may also serve during other programs as teen leaders 
further developing leadership, communication, and employability skills.

4. Measurable Objective(s):  State in measurable terms (%) the intended effect of the program on specific 
undisciplined and/or delinquent behaviors. Example: anticipated reductions in court referrals, runaway behavior, 
disruptive behavior at school, anticipated improved school attendance and academic achievement. These objectives 
must include impact on participants.

75% Clients will have no new adjudications for a complaint with an offense date after the admission date.
75% Clients successfully/satisfactorily completing the program will have no new complaints in the 12 months following 
completion.
75% Clients successfully/satisfactorily completing the program will have no new adjudications in the 12 months 
following completion.
75% Clients will successfully or satisfactorily complete services as intended by the program design/service plan.
75% Clients will reduce specific problem behaviors presented at referral and targeted in the individual service plan.
75% Clients will demonstrate improvement in targeted skills identified in the individual service plan.
75% Clients will have no new complaints with an offense date after the admission date.

5. Elevated Risks and Needs:  Describe how program services will address one or more of the elevated risk and 
needs listed in the most recent JCPC Request for Proposal.

Associations with delinquent peers will be addressed by providing participants with a safe, supervised environment to 
learn and interact with peers in a positive manner.  Opportunities for interpersonal skill building and healthy relationship 

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 12/31/2012
Department of Public Safety

SECTION III:  COMPONENT SUMMARY

NAME OF COMPONENT: Camp BLUE (Building Leaders and Urging Excellence

formation are the foundation of program activities.  Positive peer relationships are fostered and social competence is 
improved through participation in skill building activities. Vocational skills training will encourage positive community 
interactions and increase employability among older participants.

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 12/31/2012
Department of Public Safety

SECTION IV:  COMPONENT NARRATIVE (attach for each component)

NAME OF COMPONENT: Camp BLUE (Building Leaders and Urging Excellence

1. Location:  List physical address(es) and describe where program services are delivered.

Overnight camping opportunities will be provided at the Eastern 4-H Center, Columbia, North Carolina.
Day only programs and workshops will be provided at Camden County Middle School, Camden, North Carolina, 
Camden County Library, Camden, North Carolina, and local churches located in Camden North Carolina.
Adventure based activities will take place at Treasure Point 4-H Camp in Camden, North Carolina.

2. Operation:  Describe the daily/weekly schedule of program operation.

Six-weeks of summer programming will be provided. The overnight 4-H Camp is tentatively planned to take place on 
June 18-23rd, 2023 and participants will be in residence for the duration of the event at the Eastern 4-H Center. Three 
weeks of day programs will operate four days per week from 9 am until 3 pm for younger youth (ages 8-13). One week 
of life skills/vocational camp will be provided for older youth. Additional 4-H opportunities will be offered throughout the 
summer months. Daily activities will consist of verbal instruction, experiential learning lessons, activity debriefing 
sessions, small group interaction, educational field trips and some unstructured social time supported with 4-H 
curriculum and other research based curriculum. Transportation will be provided for field trips.

3. Staff Positions:  Describe paid or volunteer position qualifications, (certifications, degrees, work experience) and 
position(s) responsibilities relative to this component.

The position of the Camden County Program Coordinator (full-time) prefers a Bachelor's degree in human services, or 
related field, and experience working with juveniles and at-risk youth, or equivalent combination of education and 
experience.  

Summer programs will be administered by the Program Coordinator,1 paid staff position, and 1-2 youth leaders (paid 
training stipend/honorarium). All staff/volunteers must undergo a criminal background check and be certified in First 
Aid and CPR.   Adult paid staff must have a valid NC Driver's License. 

The Program Coordinator will work to plan/coordinate all camp activities, hire/train counselors, enter and track all client 
information into NC Allies and ensure the safe implementation of all camp activities.  They will interface regularly with 
parents to exchange information and provide status updates on participants.  The camp staff  will implement 
educational lessons daily, responsible for the care and supervision of the youth assigned to their group, act as a 
positive role model for youth, and adhere to the daily schedule as stated by the Program Coordinator.

The Camden County 4-H Agent serves as the supervisor and program contact for the JCPC program. In the absence 
of a 4-H agent the County Extension director will oversee the JCPC program. The Camden County Finance Officer 
serves as the program fiscal officer.

Paid staff will work 32 hours per week for 4 weeks during the summer months.

Unpaid adult volunteers must complete a Volunteer application and have a criminal background check administered 
prior to volunteering in any Camden County 4-H Program.

4. Service Type SPEP:  Describe implementation to include:

Primary Service: Challenge Programs; Secondary Service: None

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 12/31/2012
Department of Public Safety

SECTION IV:  COMPONENT NARRATIVE (attach for each component)

NAME OF COMPONENT: Camp BLUE (Building Leaders and Urging Excellence

5. Admission Process:  Describe the specific referral, screening, admission process (including timeline), the staff 
responsible for making decisions about admissions and reasons why a referral may not be accepted.

The Camden County Program Coordinator will accept referrals from SRO's, law enforcement, court counselors, mental 
health professionals, school officials, faith community members, other youth serving agencies, and parents. A 
screening committee may be convened as appropriate such as when the program is nearing capacity and additional 
referrals are received to determine which referrals should be prioritized. Any referral from Juvenile Court will be given 
priority. The Program Coordinator will begin the admission process with the referred juvenile and his/her parent/
guardian(s) within 30 days of referral.  All juveniles referred with relevant risk factors or problem behaviors and willing 
to participate will be admitted to the program, unless behavior and/or individual needs are such that they cannot 
adequately be served by the program.

6. Termination Process:  Describe the termination process to include the staff responsible for making decisions and 
the criteria for a successful termination, satisfactory termination, unsuccessful completion and non-compliant 
termination.

A successful/satisfactory termination will result when a juvenile has received a full dose of service: up to 60 program 
hours over 3 weeks minimum, and demonstrated sufficient behavior/attitude modifications.  

Unsuccessful completion will result when a juvenile completes but demonstrates no improvement in behavior or 
attitude or if they fail to complete the program and demonstrate little or no improvement in behavior/attitude.

A non-compliant termination will result when a juvenile routinely fails to participate in offered programs & activities.

How is the referring agency involved with the termination process?

The referring agency will be notified of all successful and satisfactory terminations after the fact. The referring agency 
will be contacted before an unsuccessful or non-compliant termination is processed, as a courtesy and in an effort to 
get the child/parent to cooperate with the program.

7. Referring Agency Interaction:  Describe the interaction with juvenile court counselors and/or other referring 
agencies including how client progress will be communicated.

Referring agencies will have an organizational meeting during the last JCPC meeting of the fiscal year. The Program 
Coordinator will be available for all referral sources to call, email, or visit to answer any questions and to address 
concerns. Referrals may be mailed, emailed, faxed, or delivered in person. Contact with the referral sources, if 
applicable, will be on going during the duration of a youth's involvement in the program.

8. Intervention/Treatment:  Describe specifically what the component will do to redirect inappropriate youth behavior 
or how the component will address the identified needs of the youth and family. What interventions will typically be 
utilized in this component and how will parents/guardians be involved?

The program is housed in the NC Cooperative Extension Camden County Center, under the supervision of the 4-H 
Agent/County Extension Director.  Therefore, this program will have the ability to utilize the resources of local 
professionals within county agencies as volunteers and mentors to the program. All curriculum presented will be age-
appropriate and delivered utilizing the experiential learning model which is a cognitive approach.  With the use of these 
resources, as well as others, the program will provide participants with short-term intense summer experiences that will 
challenge and provide opportunities to strengthen life skills development through physical challenge, curriculum, 

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 12/31/2012
Department of Public Safety

SECTION IV:  COMPONENT NARRATIVE (attach for each component)

NAME OF COMPONENT: Camp BLUE (Building Leaders and Urging Excellence

citizenship, leadership and community service activities.  Participants  who learn and strengthen life skills and 
participate in a group environment will be able to work together as a team and re-direct inappropriate behavior.  The 
Program Coordinator will work with clients, their parents/guardian(s), and their school to identify any issue(s) that may 
need to be addressed per individual.

9. Best Practice Model:  Describe what model or evidence-supported/best practice the program is based upon.

Based on the Targeting Life Skills in 4-H Model by University of Florida, all curriculum will be focused on providing 35 
essential life skills. All curriculum used will be research based and will be presented in an age-appropriate and hands-
on learning style, delivered utilizing the experiential learning and adventure based learning models.

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 01/09/2012
Department of Public Safety

SECTION II:  COMPONENT STATISTICAL INFORMATION

Multi-Components Yes

Component Service Statistics PROGRAM COMPONENT INFORMATION - APPLICATION YEAR

Component Name: Teen Court Component ID #

 38181
What is this component's maximum client capacity at any given time? 5

Frequency of client contact per month:
1

Anticipated Average Length of 
Stay:

90 Days

Total Component Cost: $12,966 ÷  by Estimated # to be served during funding period: 5
Estimated Average Cost Per Youth: $2,593

Applies to 
continuation 

programs only.

Actual number of youth admitted FY 21-22: 6

1 Number of admissions Juvenile Justice Referred 16.67% of total admissions
1 Number of admissions Law Enforcement Referred 16.67% of total admissions
0 Number of admissions District Court Referred 0% of total admissions

Actual number served FY 21-22: 6

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 12/31/2012
Department of Public Safety

SECTION III:  COMPONENT SUMMARY

NAME OF COMPONENT: Teen Court

1. Statement of the Problem:  In concise terminology, describe how the program will address continuum need(s) in 
the county.

The increase in school behavior problems as a risk factor with Camden County youth necessitates an early 
intervention before problem behaviors escalate and reach the court system. Teen Court is a diversionary alternative to 
juvenile intake and district court.

2. Target Population:  Describe the target population, including age, and the steps taken to insure that the target 
population is served.

Camden County youth between the ages of 6 - 18, attending school full-time, who commit a qualifying misdemeanor 
and admit guilt are eligible to participate in this program, by referral.

3. Program Goal(s):  Provide a brief statement to describe the overall purpose of the program.

This program will hold juvenile offenders accountable for their actions through creative sentencing and positive peer 
pressure without permanently affecting their record.

4. Measurable Objective(s):  State in measurable terms (%) the intended effect of the program on specific 
undisciplined and/or delinquent behaviors. Example: anticipated reductions in court referrals, runaway behavior, 
disruptive behavior at school, anticipated improved school attendance and academic achievement. These objectives 
must include impact on participants.

75% Clients successfully/satisfactorily completing the program will have no new adjudications in the 12 months 
following completion.
75% Clients will demonstrate improvement in developing and/or maintaining social and interpersonal interactions 
during program participation.
75% Clients will have no new adjudications for a complaint with an offense date after the admission date.
75% Clients successfully/satisfactorily completing the program will have no new complaints in the 12 months following 
completion.
75% Clients will successfully or satisfactorily complete services as intended by the program design/service plan.
75% Clients will have no new complaints with an offense date after the admission date.

5. Elevated Risks and Needs:  Describe how program services will address one or more of the elevated risk and 
needs listed in the most recent JCPC Request for Proposal.

Teen Court will address the risk factor of school behavior problems by requiring all defendants to complete sentencing 
as required by Teen Court disposition.  Requirements may include, but are not limited to community service, writing 
apology letters, and participating in workshops that will aid in reducing recidivism. Positive peer associations will be 
promoted by providing participants with the opportunity to experience peer interactions with teen court volunteers 
(jurors, attorney, court officers, etc.).  School behavior problems will be addressed by referring the defendant to other 
program components upon completion of the Teen Court Sentence. Sentencing circles will also be used on a case by 
case basis.

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 12/31/2012
Department of Public Safety

SECTION IV:  COMPONENT NARRATIVE (attach for each component)

NAME OF COMPONENT: Teen Court

1. Location:  List physical address(es) and describe where program services are delivered.

Teen Court trainings/meetings may be held at either Camden Middle School, 248 Scotland Road, Camden, NC 27921, 
Camden High School, 103 US Highway 158 East, Camden, NC 27921 or at the Camden County Courthouse Complex 
at 117 North NC Highway 343, Camden, NC 27921.  Initial youth/parent visits will take place at the Extension Office, 
120 N Carolina Hwy 343 N or at the student's school.

2. Operation:  Describe the daily/weekly schedule of program operation.

The Program Coordinator works Monday - Friday, 8 AM to 5 PM. Program operation will be determined on a case by 
case basis. Student volunteers will meet at least once monthly for training and/or for court hearings.

3. Staff Positions:  Describe paid or volunteer position qualifications, (certifications, degrees, work experience) and 
position(s) responsibilities relative to this component.

The position of the Camden County Program Coordinator (full-time) prefers a Bachelor's degree in human services, or 
related field, and experience working with juveniles and at-risk youth, or equivalent combination of education and 
experience.  A valid NC Driver's License is required.  The Coordinator is responsible for working in conjunction with 
SROs at all county schools; recruiting and training student Teen Court volunteers; accepting and processing referrals 
through NC Allies, and other DJJ policy requirements. 

The Camden County 4-H Agent serves as the supervisor and program contact for the JCPC program. In the absence 
of a 4-H agent the County Extension director will oversee the JCPC program. The Camden County Finance Officer 
serves as the program fiscal officer. 

A Camden County Public Schools teacher/staff member may serve as the Teen Court Advisor and recruit and train 
student volunteers as well as oversee trials as needed. The Teen Court Advisor must complete a criminal background 
check.

4. Service Type SPEP:  Describe implementation to include:

This program is a STRUCTURE ONLY.

5. Admission Process:  Describe the specific referral, screening, admission process (including timeline), the staff 
responsible for making decisions about admissions and reasons why a referral may not be accepted.

The Program Coordinator or Teen Court Advisor will accept and review referrals from Court Counselors, SRO's, and 
school officials.  An admission visit will be arranged with the juvenile and their parent/guardian(s) to explain program 
details, rules and scheduling.  A referral may not be accepted if the parent/guardian refuses to allow their child to 
participate upon which the referral source would be notified immediately.

6. Termination Process:  Describe the termination process to include the staff responsible for making decisions and 
the criteria for a successful termination, satisfactory termination, unsuccessful completion and non-compliant 
termination.

Referral sources and parent/guardian(s) will be notified by the Program Coordinator or Teen Court Advisor upon a 
participant's termination from the program. 

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 12/31/2012
Department of Public Safety

SECTION IV:  COMPONENT NARRATIVE (attach for each component)

NAME OF COMPONENT: Teen Court

A successful or satisfactory termination will result when a juvenile has completed all Teen Court sentence 
requirements with no or relatively few problems.

An unsuccessful termination will result if a juvenile fails to complete all necessary sentence mandates during the time 
allowed.

A non-compliant termination will result when a juvenile and/or parent/guardian(s) refuses to participate in the program, 
as specified during the initial admissions visit.

How is the referring agency involved with the termination process?

The referring agency will be notified of all successful and satisfactory terminations after the fact.  The referring agency 
will be notified before an unsuccessful  or non-compliant termination is processed, and advised that the juvenile will be 
turned over to the referral source for further action, as necessary.

7. Referring Agency Interaction:  Describe the interaction with juvenile court counselors and/or other referring 
agencies including how client progress will be communicated.

Referring agencies will be taught how to complete the referral form.  The Program Coordinator or Teen Court Advisor 
will be available for all referral sources to call, email, or visit to answer questions or address concerns.  Referrals may 
be mailed, e-mailed, faxed or delivered in person.  Contact with referral sources will be on going throughout the 
duration of the youth's involvement in the program. DJJ referrals will receive monthly progress reports.

8. Intervention/Treatment:  Describe specifically what the component will do to redirect inappropriate youth behavior 
or how the component will address the identified needs of the youth and family. What interventions will typically be 
utilized in this component and how will parents/guardians be involved?

Teen Court will provide defendants the opportunity to accept responsibility for their actions and to give back to the 
community through the completion of their constructive sentences.  Learning that you will be held accountable for your 
actions gives youth the skills to recognize their choices and evaluate their behaviors.  Parent/guardian(s) must agree to 
participate and be responsible for transporting their child to court and all scheduled sentence obligations, including 
workshops and Community Service, as applicable.

9. Best Practice Model:  Describe what model or evidence-supported/best practice the program is based upon.

Teen Court is identified by the National Teen Court Association website as an effective diversion program from 
Juvenile Court.  Since prior adjudications present the risk of future offending, a successful diversion to Teen Court may 
keep a juvenile from becoming adjudicated from the beginning.

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 01/09/2012
Department of Public Safety

SECTION II:  COMPONENT STATISTICAL INFORMATION

Multi-Components Yes

Component Service Statistics PROGRAM COMPONENT INFORMATION - APPLICATION YEAR

Component Name: C.R.O.W.N. Kids & B.E.A.R.S. Component ID #

 38182
What is this component's maximum client capacity at any given time? 10

Frequency of client contact per month:
4

Anticipated Average Length of 
Stay:

150 Days

Total Component Cost: $37,446 ÷  by Estimated # to be served during funding period: 20
Estimated Average Cost Per Youth: $1,872

Applies to 
continuation 

programs only.

Actual number of youth admitted FY 21-22: 20

0 Number of admissions Juvenile Justice Referred 0% of total admissions
0 Number of admissions Law Enforcement Referred 0% of total admissions
0 Number of admissions District Court Referred 0% of total admissions

Actual number served FY 21-22: 20

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 12/31/2012
Department of Public Safety

SECTION III:  COMPONENT SUMMARY

NAME OF COMPONENT: C.R.O.W.N. Kids & B.E.A.R.S.

1. Statement of the Problem:  In concise terminology, describe how the program will address continuum need(s) in 
the county.

In 2022/2023 youth referred to the Camden County program demonstrated the following risk factors: school behavior 
problems, prior referrals to court, substance abuse,  prior assault with no weapon, and rejection by peers. Needs 
included substance abuse, school behavior, academic performance, problem sexual behavior, family domestic discord, 
mental health needs, and marginal parenting skills. The interpersonal skills component provides opportunities for social 
competency through group skills sessions, community service projects, and enrichment activities designed to lessen 
the impact of risk factors and increase protective factors thereby building resiliency among referred juveniles.

2. Target Population:  Describe the target population, including age, and the steps taken to insure that the target 
population is served.

Camden County youth ages 6 -18 are eligible for service. This program will serve youth considered at-risk, by behavior 
or home environment, as referred by School Resource Officers (SRO's), school administration and teachers, parents/
guardians, juvenile court counselors, and/or other youth serving community agencies.

3. Program Goal(s):  Provide a brief statement to describe the overall purpose of the program.

For youth in grades 1 - 12, this program will teach problem solving, conflict resolution, interpersonal/social skills, as 
well as other identified life skills during and after school hours and during school breaks. The Program Coordinator and 
school/site administrator will establish an in-school schedule where students will participate in weekly, age-appropriate 
workshops. Students will also participate in off campus community service projects and team building activities.

As a result of these programs, participants will improve school attendance and overall school behavior.

4. Measurable Objective(s):  State in measurable terms (%) the intended effect of the program on specific 
undisciplined and/or delinquent behaviors. Example: anticipated reductions in court referrals, runaway behavior, 
disruptive behavior at school, anticipated improved school attendance and academic achievement. These objectives 
must include impact on participants.

75% Clients will have no new complaints with an offense date after the admission date.
75% Clients successfully/satisfactorily completing the program will have no new complaints in the 12 months following 
completion.
75% Clients will reduce specific problem behaviors presented at referral and targeted in the individual service plan.
75% Clients successfully/satisfactorily completing the program will have no new adjudications in the 12 months 
following completion.
75% Clients will demonstrate improvement in targeted skills identified in the individual service plan.
75% Clients will successfully or satisfactorily complete services as intended by the program design/service plan.
75% Clients will have no new adjudications for a complaint with an offense date after the admission date.

5. Elevated Risks and Needs:  Describe how program services will address one or more of the elevated risk and 
needs listed in the most recent JCPC Request for Proposal.

The program will provide the necessary protective factors such as prosocial peers, self efficacy (high level of social 
skill development), and strong school motivation to address the risk factors which include behavior problems in school, 

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 12/31/2012
Department of Public Safety

SECTION III:  COMPONENT SUMMARY

NAME OF COMPONENT: C.R.O.W.N. Kids & B.E.A.R.S.

prior court referrals, substance abuse and prior assault. The program will create an environment of positive peer 
interactions, teaching interpersonal/social skills and providing opportunities for academic enrichment, all while working 
in conjunction with each participant's parent/guardian(s) and school administrators.

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 12/31/2012
Department of Public Safety

SECTION IV:  COMPONENT NARRATIVE (attach for each component)

NAME OF COMPONENT: C.R.O.W.N. Kids & B.E.A.R.S.

1. Location:  List physical address(es) and describe where program services are delivered.

Enrichment activities and meeting will be held at the following Camden County Public Schools locations and County 
locations:

   * Grandy Primary School - 175 NC Highway 343 North, Camden, NC 27921
   * Camden Intermediate School - 123 Noblitt Road, Camden, NC 27921
   * Camden Middle School - 248 Scotland Road, Camden, NC 27921
   * Camden County High School - 103 US Highway 158 East, Camden, NC 27921
   * Camden Early College - 103A US Highway 158 East, Camden, NC 27921
   * Camden County Center for Active Adults - 117 N Carolina Hwy 343 S, Camden, NC 27921
   * Camden County Library - 118 N Carolina Hwy 343 S, Camden, NC 27921
   * Treasure Point Park - 123 Treasure Point Rd., Camden, NC 27921

The program coordinator will maintain an office at Camden County Extension, 120 NC Hwy 343 N.

2. Operation:  Describe the daily/weekly schedule of program operation.

The Camden County Program Coordinator will create a monthly program schedule for students identified at each of the 
county's schools. Programs will meet in age appropriate groups during school, after school and during school breaks. 
Activities will include workshops, group meetings, and other curriculum based projects. In school support will also be 
provided for identified youth in conjunction with school counselors.

3. Staff Positions:  Describe paid or volunteer position qualifications, (certifications, degrees, work experience) and 
position(s) responsibilities relative to this component.

The position of the Camden County Program Coordinator (full-time) prefers a Bachelor's degree in human services, or 
related field, and experience working with juveniles and at-risk youth, or equivalent combination of education and 
experience.  A valid NC Driver's License is required.  Coordinator is responsible for conducting skills sessions, 
planning and implementing activities, maintaining confidential files, ALLIES client tracking, and other DJJ policy 
requirements. 

The Camden County 4-H Agent serves as the supervisor and program contact for the JCPC program. In the absence 
of a 4-H agent the County Extension director will oversee the JCPC program. The Camden County Finance Officer 
serves as the program fiscal officer.

Unpaid adult volunteers must complete a Volunteer application and have a criminal background check administered 
prior to volunteering in any Camden County 4-H Program.

4. Service Type SPEP:  Describe implementation to include:

Primary Service: Social Skills Training; Secondary Service: None

5. Admission Process:  Describe the specific referral, screening, admission process (including timeline), the staff 
responsible for making decisions about admissions and reasons why a referral may not be accepted.

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 12/31/2012
Department of Public Safety

SECTION IV:  COMPONENT NARRATIVE (attach for each component)

NAME OF COMPONENT: C.R.O.W.N. Kids & B.E.A.R.S.

The Camden County Program Coordinator will accept referrals from SRO's, law enforcement, court counselors, mental 
health professionals, school officials, faith community members, other youth serving agencies, and parents. A 
screening committee may be convened as appropriate, such as when the program is nearing capacity and additional 
referrals are received, to determine which referrals should be prioritized. Any referral from Juvenile Court will be given 
priority. The Program Coordinator will begin the admission process with the referred juvenile and his/her parent/
guardian(s) within 30 days of referral.  All juveniles referred with relevant risk factors or problem behaviors and willing 
to participate will be admitted to the program, unless behavior and/or individual needs are such that they cannot 
adequately be served by the program.

6. Termination Process:  Describe the termination process to include the staff responsible for making decisions and 
the criteria for a successful termination, satisfactory termination, unsuccessful completion and non-compliant 
termination.

The Program Coordinator is responsible for making all termination decisions.  

A successful termination will result when a juvenile has received a full dose of service: 24 program hours over 16 
weeks minimum, and demonstrated sufficient behavior/attitude modifications.  Students may also be successfully 
terminated prior to their completion of program requirements if they have become involved in other after school 
activities (sports/club/job) that prohibit group participation and demonstrate sufficient behavior/attitude modifications.

Unsuccessful completion will result when a juvenile completes but demonstrates no improvement in behavior or 
attitude or if they fail to complete the program and demonstrate little or no improvement in behavior/attitude.

A higher level required termination will result when a juvenile routinely fails to participate in offered programs & 
activities.

How is the referring agency involved with the termination process?

The referring agency as well as the parent/guardian will be notified of all successful and satisfactory terminations after 
the fact. The referring agency will be contacted before an unsuccessful or non-compliant termination is processed, as a 
courtesy and in an effort to get the child/parent to cooperate with the program. Less than successful completions will 
be staffed with referring entities.

7. Referring Agency Interaction:  Describe the interaction with juvenile court counselors and/or other referring 
agencies including how client progress will be communicated.

Referring agencies will be gathered annually to discuss the upcoming program year and provide input/feedback during 
the final JCPC Meeting of each fiscal year. A discussion of the Camden Youth Services Referral process and 
paperwork will occur at the first JCPC Meeting of each fiscal year.  The Program Coordinator will be available for 
referral sources to call, email, or visit to answer questions or address the duration of the juvenile's involvement in the 
program. Regular monthly updates will be provided per policy to the court counselors when applicable, and additional 
contact will occur as needed. Summary of program progress will be presented at JCPC Meetings.

8. Intervention/Treatment:  Describe specifically what the component will do to redirect inappropriate youth behavior 
or how the component will address the identified needs of the youth and family. What interventions will typically be 
utilized in this component and how will parents/guardians be involved?

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 12/31/2012
Department of Public Safety

SECTION IV:  COMPONENT NARRATIVE (attach for each component)

NAME OF COMPONENT: C.R.O.W.N. Kids & B.E.A.R.S.

This program is housed in the N.C. Cooperative Extension- Camden County Center,  under the supervision of the 4-H 
Agent/County Extension Director. Therefore, the program will endeavor to utilize the research-based resources and 
information from NC State and Division of Juvenile Justice to develop the highest quality programming. Being housed 
within Extension will offer opportunities for pro-social curriculum and interactions for juveniles in the program. With the 
use of these resources, as well as others, the program will provide the participants with opportunities to strengthen life 
skill development through curriculum, citizenship, leadership and community service activities.  Participants who learn 
and strengthen life skills and participate in a group environment will be able to work together as a team and redirect 
inappropriate behavior.  The Program Coordinator will work with clients, their parent/guardian(s) and their school to 
identify any issue(s) that may need to be addressed for each individual.

9. Best Practice Model:  Describe what model or evidence-supported/best practice the program is based upon.

Based on the Targeting Life Skills in 4-H Model by University of Florida, all curriculum will be focused on providing 35 
essential life skills. All curriculum used will be researched based and will be presented in an age-appropriate and 
hands-on learning style, delivered utilizing the experiential learning model.

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form structure last revised 12/20/2013
Department of Public Safety

SECTION V:  TERMS OF AGREEMENT

NOTE: Details in the Terms of Agreement and Payment to Sponsoring Agency sections are added by 
NCALLIES when an application is approved for funding. 

This Agreement is entered into by and between Department of Public Safety, (hereinafter referred to as the DPS), and 
County, (hereinafter referred to as the County), the County’s Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (hereinafter referred to 
as the JCPC) and (hereinafter referred to as the Sponsoring Agency). 
 
DPS, the County, the JCPC and the Sponsoring Agency do mutually agree as follows: 

Term of Agreement

This Agreement shall become effective _______ and shall terminate ________.

Payment to Sponsoring Agency

All parties agree that services will be delivered as described in the approved Program Agreement and that funds will be 
disbursed in an amount not to exceed the amount $___________ for the term of this agreement, unless amended by 
an approved Program Agreement Revision.

Availability of Funds:

All parties to this Agreement agree and understand that the payment of the sums specified in this Program Agreement 
budget, or most recently approved Program Agreement Revision, is dependent and contingent upon and subject to the 
appropriation, allocation, and availability of funds for this purpose to DPS.

Responsibilities of the Parties

DPS shall:

1. Disburse funds monthly to County Governments, for payment to the Sponsoring Agency, from funds appropriated 
by the General Assembly; 

2. Reserve the right to suspend payment to the County for any non-compliance of reporting requirements by the 
Sponsoring Agency set forth in the DPS JCPC Policy; 

3. Immediately notify, in writing, the JCPC, County, and Sponsoring Agency (including the Board of Directors, if 
applicable), if payments are suspended and again once payments resume; 

4. Pay only for work as described in the Program Agreement, or most recently approved Program Agreement 
Revision, provided by the Sponsoring Agency and approved subcontractors; 

5. Provide technical assistance, orientation, and training to the Sponsoring Agency, the County and the JCPC; 

6. Monitor the Sponsoring Agency’s funded program(s) in accordance with DPS JCPC Policy 3. Operations: Program 

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form structure last revised 12/20/2013
Department of Public Safety

Oversight and Monitoring; and 

7. Notify parties entering into this Agreement of all due dates in a timely manner in order for reports to be submitted by 
the established due dates.

The Sponsoring Agency shall:

1. Comply with all laws, ordinances, codes, rules, regulations, and licensing requirements that are applicable to the 
conduct of its business, including those of Federal, State, and local agencies having jurisdiction and/or authority; 

2. Comply with all Federal and State laws relating to equal employment opportunity; 

3. Keep as confidential and not divulge or make available to any individual or organization without the prior written 
approval of DPS any information, data, instruments, documents, studies or reports given to or prepared or assembled 
by the Sponsoring Agency under this Agreement; 

4. Acknowledge that in receiving, storing, processing or otherwise dealing with any confidential information, it will 
safeguard and not redisclose the information, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement; 

5. Comply with the DPS JCPC Policy and North Carolina Administrative Code procedures; 

6. Secure local match, if applicable, pursuant to 14B NCAC 11B.0105, for the approved DPS funds; 

7. Create and adopt individualized written agency guidelines specific to the funded program, while also adhering to 
DPS JCPC Policy for the specific funded program type; 

8. Ensure that state funds received are spent in accordance with the approved Program Agreement, or most recently 
approved Program Agreement Revision, and be accountable for the legal and appropriate expenditure of those state 
funds; 

9. Maintain reports, records, and other information to properly document services rendered and outcomes; also 
maintain an ability to send and receive electronic communication; 

10. Have the capacity to use the DPS electronic, internet-based system for tracking clients served; also maintain an 
ability to electronically sign required DPS documents; 

11. Use generally accepted accounting procedures that guarantee the integrity of the expenditure of funds, and 
maintain reports, records, and other information to properly account for the expenditure of all State funds provided to 
the Sponsoring Agency; 

12. When refunds are requested from the North Carolina Department of Revenue for sales and/or use taxes paid by 
the agency in the performance of the Program Agreement, or most recently approved Program Agreement Revision, 
as allowed by NCGS § 105-164.14(c), the agency shall exclude all refundable sales and use taxes from reportable 
expenditures submitted to the County and DPS; 

13. Submit Program Agreement Revisions, Third Quarter Accounting, Final Accounting, and annual detailed 
expenditures through NCALLIES. These reports must be in accordance with the submission process as outlined in the 
DPS JCPC Policy and with the due dates established by DPS; 

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form structure last revised 12/20/2013
Department of Public Safety

14. Make personnel, reports, records and other information available to DPS, the County, the JCPC, and/or the State 
Auditor for oversight, monitoring and evaluation purposes; 

15. Submit any other information requested by DPS, the County, the JCPC, and/or the State Auditor; 

16. Be responsible for the performance of all subcontractors as described in the Program Agreement or most recently 
approved Program Agreement Revision; 

17. Indemnify, defend, and hold harmless DPS, the State of North Carolina, the County, the JCPC and any of their 
officers, agents and employees, from any claims of third parties arising out of any act or omission of the Sponsoring 
Agency in connection with the performance of the Program Agreement or most recently approved Program Agreement 
Revision; 

18. Receive written permission and budgetary approval from DPS prior to using the Program Agreement, or most 
recently approved Program Agreement Revision, as a part of any news release or commercial advertising, and 
acknowledge DPS funding in partnership with the County; 

19. Comply with DPS JCPC Policy 6: Operations: Program Eligibility for Funding regarding any trainings and 
requirements for the United States Department of Justice national standards to prevent, detect, and respond to prison 
rape under the Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) and any additional requirements in 14B NCAC 11C 

20. Be deemed an independent contractor in the performance of services described in the Program Agreement, or 
most recently approved Program Agreement Revision, and as such shall be wholly responsible for the services to be 
performed and for the supervision of its employees, interns, volunteers and subcontractors; and 

21. Represent that it has, or shall secure at its own expense, all personnel required in performing the services as 
described in the Program Agreement, or most recently approved Program Agreement Revision. Such personnel shall 
not be employees of or have any individual contractual relationship with DPS.

Sponsoring Agency and Use of Contractor(s)/Subcontractors

The Sponsoring Agency may engage with independent contractors as needed to perform services or support services 
described in line item 190 the Program Agreement, or most recently approved Program Agreement Revision. When 
independent contractors are providing services the Sponsoring Agency must:

22. Upload a signed Contract for Professional Services (Form JCPC/PO 001 Contract for Professional Services 
Template) into NCALLIES once the Program Agreement or Program Agreement Revision is approved by DPS; 

23. Be responsible for the performance of all contractors or subcontractors as described in the Program 
Agreement, or most recently approved Program Agreement Revision; 

24. Hold any contractor or subcontractor to which the Sponsoring Agency provides State funds accountable for 
the legal and appropriate expenditure of State funds and require compliance with all applicable laws and DPS 
JCPC Policy; and 

25. Ensure that all contractors or subcontractors provide all information necessary to comply with the standards 
set forth in the Program Agreement, or most recently approved Program Agreement Revision.

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form structure last revised 12/20/2013
Department of Public Safety

The JCPC shall: 

1. Ensure the Sponsoring Agency uses JCPC funds only for the purposes approved by DPS in the JCPC Program 
Agreement or most recently approved JCPC Program Agreement Revision; 

2. Comply with the DPS JCPC Policy, the North Carolina Administrative Code procedures (14B NCAC 11B), and 
N.C.G.S. §§ 143B-845 to 851; 

3. Review and locally approve Program Agreements, Program Agreement Revision(s), and Third Quarter Accounting 
and submit information to the County in a timely manner to meet due dates established by DPS; 

4. Submit any other information requested by the County or DPS; and 

5. Monitor the Sponsoring Agency’s currently funded JCPC program(s) in accordance with DPS JCPC Policy 3. 
Operations: Program Oversight and Monitoring. 
Reference: 14B NCAC 11B.0202 and DPS JCPC Policy (policies 1, 3, 7, 8, 9, 10 and 11). 

The County shall: 

1. Ensure the Sponsoring Agency is appropriately licensed when applicable, and either a local public agency, a 
501(c)3 nonprofit corporation or local housing authority (applicable only to the JCPC funding process); 

2. Use funds only for the purposes approved by DPS in the Program Agreement, or most recently approved Program 
Agreement Revision; 

3. Disburse funds monthly and oversee funds to the Sponsoring Agency in accordance with 14B NCAC 11B.0108; 

4. Comply with the DPS JCPC Policy and North Carolina Administrative Code procedures (14B NCAC 11B); 

5. Review and locally approve Program Agreement Revisions received from the Sponsoring Agency for final approval 
from DPS; and 

6. Review and locally approve Third Quarter and Final Accounting forms for the JCPC and all funded programs 
according to the procedures and due dates established by DPS. 
Reference: 14B NCAC 11B.0108; DPS JCPC Policy (policies 8 and 9). 

Headings: The Section and Paragraph headings in these General Terms and Conditions are not material parts of the 
agreement and should not be used to construe the meaning thereof.

Choice of Law: The validity of this Program Agreement and any of its terms or provisions, as well as the rights and 
duties of the parties to this Program Agreement, are governed by the laws of North Carolina, including the relevant 
provisions of G.S. Chapter 143B, Article 13, Part 3, Subpart F, and the Rules of 14B NCAC Chapter 11. The parties, 
by signing this Program Agreement, agree and submit, solely for matters concerning this Program Agreement, to the 
exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of North Carolina and agree, solely for such purpose, that the exclusive venue for 

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form structure last revised 12/20/2013
Department of Public Safety

any legal proceedings shall be Wake County, North Carolina. The place of this Program Agreement and all 
transactions and agreements relating to it, and their situs and forum, shall be Wake County, North Carolina, where all 
matters, whether sounding in Program Agreement or tort, relating to the validity, construction, interpretation, and 
enforcement shall be determined.

Assignment: No assignment of the Sponsoring Agency's obligations or the Sponsoring Agency's right to receive 
payment hereunder shall be permitted. However, upon written request approved by the issuing purchasing authority, 
DPS may:

(a) Forward the Sponsoring Agency's payment check(s) directly to any person or entity designated by the 
Program Manager, or
(b) Include any person or entity designated by the Sponsoring Agency as a joint payee on the Sponsoring 
Agency's payment check(s).

In no event shall such approval and action obligate DPS or County Government to anyone other than the Sponsoring 
Agency, and the Sponsoring Agency shall remain responsible for fulfillment of all Program Agreement, or the most 
recently approved Program Agreement Revision, obligations.

Beneficiaries: Except as herein specifically provided otherwise, this Program Agreement shall inure to the benefit of 
and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors. It is expressly understood and agreed that the 
enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Program Agreement, and all rights of action relating to such 
enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to DPS, the County Government, and the Sponsoring Agency. Nothing 
contained in this document shall give or allow any claim or right of action whatsoever by any third person. It is the 
express intention of DPS and County Government that any such person or entity, other than DPS or the County 
Government or the Sponsoring Agency receiving services or benefits under this Program Agreement shall be deemed 
an incidental beneficiary only.

Property Rights

Intellectual Property: All deliverable items produced pursuant to this Program Agreement are the exclusive property 
of DPS. The Sponsoring Agency shall not assert a claim of copyright or other property interest in such deliverables.

Physical Property: The Sponsoring Agency agrees that it shall be responsible for the proper custody and care of any 
property purchased for or furnished to it for use in connection with the performance of this Program Agreement, or the 
most recently approved Program Agreement Revision, and will reimburse DPS for loss of, or damage to, such 
property. At the termination of this Program Agreement, the Sponsoring Agency, County Government, and JCPC shall 
follow the guidelines for disposition of property set forth in the North Carolina Administrative Code and DPS JCPC 
Policy 1. Operations: JCPC Operations. 
Reference: 14B NCAC 11B.0110. 

Disbursements and Internal Controls

Reversion of Unexpended Funds

Any remaining unexpended funds disbursed by DPS to the County for the Sponsoring Agency must be refunded/
reverted back to DPS at the close of the fiscal year or upon termination of this Agreement.

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form structure last revised 12/20/2013
Department of Public Safety

Accountability for Funds

Audit Requirement - Local Government or Public Authority Requirements
Local Government or Public Authorities in accordance with N.C.G.S. § 159-34 must have an audit performed in 
conformity with generally accepted auditing standards. The audit shall evaluate the performance of a unit of local 
government or public authority regarding compliance with all applicable Federal and State agency regulations. This 
audit, combined with the audit of financial accounts, shall be deemed to be the single audit described by the "Federal 
Single Audit Act of 1984". 

Audit Requirement – Non-Governmental Entities
An audit, when required by law, or requested by the County or DPS shall be performed in conformity with generally 
accepted auditing standards and audits of non-governmental entities, both for-profit and not-for-profit, and must meet 
the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. At a minimum, the required report shall include the financial statements 
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, all disclosures in the public interest required by 
law, and the auditor's opinion and comments relating to financial statements. The audit report must be submitted to the 
State Auditor’s office as required by law, to the County, and DPS, and to other recipients as appropriate within nine (9) 
months after the end of the program’s fiscal year.

Oversight

Access to Persons and Records
The State Auditor shall have access to persons and records related to all Program Agreements entered into by State 
agencies or political subdivisions in accordance with N.C.G.S. § 147-64.7. Additionally, as the State funding authority, 
DPS shall have access to persons and records related to all Program Agreements entered into by State agencies or 
political subdivisions.

Record Retention
Records shall not be destroyed, purged, or disposed of without the express written consent of DPS. State basic 
records retention policy requires all records to be retained for a minimum of five (5) years or until all audit exceptions 
have been resolved, whichever is longer. If the Program Agreement is subject to Federal policy and regulations, 
record retention may be longer than five (5) years since records must be retained for a period of three (3) years 
following submission of the final Federal Financial Status Report, if applicable, or three (3) years following the 
submission of a revised final Federal Financial Status Report. Also, if any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit, 
disallowance action, or other action involving this Program Agreement has been started before expiration of the five-
year retention period described above, the records must be retained until completion of the action and resolution of all 
issues which arise from it, or until the end of the regular five-year period described above, whichever is later.

No Overdue Tax Debt Not for profit organizations ONLY must comply with this section. This form must be 
uploaded in NCALLIES when submitting a Program Agreement.
The Sponsoring Agency shall be responsible for the payment of all State, local, and Federal taxes. Consistent with 
N.C.G.S. § 143C-6-23(c), not for profit organizations shall file with DPS and the County a written statement completed 
by that Sponsoring Agency's Board of Directors or other governing body, stating whether or not the Sponsoring 
Agency has any overdue tax debts, as defined by N.C.G.S. § 105-243.1, at the Federal, State, or local level. This 
written statement, No Overdue Tax Debts, shall be completed by the Sponsoring Agency to certify when there are no 

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form structure last revised 12/20/2013
Department of Public Safety

overdue taxes. If the agency has overdue taxes, the Sponsoring Agency must notify DPS at the time a Program 
Agreement is submitted.

Conflict of Interest Not for profit organizations ONLY must comply with this section. This form must be 
uploaded in NCALLIES when submitting a Program Agreement.
Consistent with the N.C.G.S. § 143C-6-23(b), not for profit organizations shall file with DPS and the County, a copy of 
that Sponsoring Agency’s policy addressing conflicts of interest that may arise involving the Sponsoring Agency’s 
management employees and the members of its Board of Directors or other governing body. The policy shall address 
situations in which any of these individuals may directly or indirectly benefit, except as the Sponsoring Agency’s 
employees or members of its Board or other governing body, from the Sponsoring Agency’s disbursing of State funds 
and shall include actions to be taken by the Sponsoring Agency or the individual, or both to avoid conflicts of interest 
and the appearance of impropriety. The policy shall be filed before the County or DPS will disburse any funds. The 
Sponsoring Agency shall also complete the DPS Conflict of Interest Policy Statement (Form DPS 13 001) and upload 
the statement in NCALLIES along with and the Sponsoring Agency's policy addressing conflicts of interests.

Proof of 501(c)(3) Not for profit organizations ONLY must comply with this section. This form must be 
uploaded in NCALLIES when submitting a Program Agreement.
Not for profit organizations must upload proof of the agency's 501(c)(3) status when submitting a program agreement 
in NCALLIES.

Amendment: This Agreement may not be amended orally or by performance. Any amendment must be requested by 
the Sponsoring Agency through submission of a Program Agreement Revision and executed by duly authorized 
representatives of DPS, the County Government, JCPC, and Sponsoring Agency.

Severability: In the event that a court of competent jurisdiction holds that a provision or requirement of this Program 
Agreement violates any applicable law, each such provision or requirement shall continue to be enforced to the extent 
it is not in violation of law or is not otherwise unenforceable and all other provisions and requirements of this Program 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

Termination for Cause: If, through any cause, the Sponsoring Agency shall fail to fulfill its obligations under this 
Program Agreement in a timely and proper manner, DPS shall have the right to terminate this Program Agreement by 
giving written notice to the Sponsoring Agency and specifying the effective date thereof. In that event, all finished or 
unfinished deliverable items prepared by the Sponsoring Agency under this Program Agreement shall, at the option of 
DPS, become its property and the Sponsoring Agency shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for 
any satisfactory work completed on such materials, minus any payment or compensation previously made. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing provision, the Sponsoring Agency shall not be relieved of liability to DPS for damages 
sustained by DPS by virtue of the Sponsoring Agency’s breach of this agreement, and DPS may withhold any 
payment due the Sponsoring Agency for the purpose of setoff until such time as the exact amount of damages due 
DPS from such breach can be determined. The filing of a petition for bankruptcy by the Sponsoring Agency shall be 
an act of default under this Program Agreement.

Termination without Cause: DPS, the County Government, or the Sponsoring Agency may terminate this 
Agreement at any time and without cause by giving at least thirty (30) days advance written notice to the other parties. 
If this Program Agreement is terminated by DPS as provided herein, the Sponsoring Agency shall be reimbursed on a 
pro rata basis for services satisfactorily provided to DPS under this Program Agreement, or the most recently 
approved Program Agreement Revision, prior to Program Agreement termination.

Waiver of Default: Waiver by DPS of any default or breach in compliance with the terms of this Program Agreement, 
or the most recently approved Program Agreement Revision, by the Sponsoring Agency shall not be deemed a waiver 

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form structure last revised 12/20/2013
Department of Public Safety

of any subsequent default or breach and shall not be construed to be modification of the terms of this Program 
Agreement unless stated to be such in writing, signed by an authorized representative of DPS, County Government, 
the JCPC, and the Sponsoring Agency.

Force Majeure: Neither party shall be deemed to be in default of its obligations hereunder if and so long as it is 
prevented from performing such obligations as a result of events beyond its reasonable control, including, without 
limitation, fire, power failures, any act of war, hostile foreign action, nuclear explosion, riot, strikes, civil insurrection, 
earthquake, hurricane, tornado, or other catastrophic natural event, pandemic, or act of God.

Survival of Promises: All promises, requirements, terms, conditions, provisions, representations, guarantees, and 
warranties contained herein shall survive the Program Agreement expiration or termination date unless specifically 
provided otherwise herein, or unless superseded by applicable Federal or State statutes of limitation.

Entire Agreement: This Program Agreement (including any documents mutually incorporated specifically herein) 
represents the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior oral or written statements or 
agreements.

END OF SECTION V – Terms of Agreement

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 12/31/2012
Department of Public Safety

SECTION VI:  BUDGET NARRATIVE

Camden County Youth Services Fiscal Year FY 23-24

Item # Justification Expense In Kind Expense

120 Salaries - Full Time Program Coordinator $37,925  

180 FICA/Medicare (Full-Time Program Coordinator) $2,902  

180 Worker's Compensation (Full-Time Program Coordinator) $1,900  

180 Retirement $5,120  

180 401(K) - Full Time Program Coordinator $1,900  

180 Insurance (health insurance full time program coordinator @ 
$720.00 a month, life insurance $115 yr

$8,755  

190 Program Administration - County Finance Officer (5% salary)  $3,896

190 Summer Camp Assistant stipend -  32 hours/week for 4 weeks 
@ $15.62 per/hour

$2,000  

190 Psychological Assessment (1 allowed at $600 as referred by 
court) contract attached

$600  

190 Program Administration - County 4-H Agent or County 
Extension Director oversight at $25 hr x 248 hrs per yr

 $6,200

190 Teen Court Advisor stipend -  $55.55 per month for 9 months $500  

210 Household and Office Space Cleaning @$30/month  $360

220 Snacks for teen court volunteer training, summer camps and 
full day workshops

$1,200  

230 Educational Materials (curriculum, supplies for lessons, youth 
volunteer training materials)

$4,250  

250 Fuel and maintenance for van $1,200  

260 Office Supplies for program support $500  

310 Travel for Program Coordinator $1,100  

320 Telephone and postage $600  

370 Advertising in Local Paper $100  

390 Audit Expense prorated portion to the program $200  

390 Other Services - Victim restitution $600  

390 4-H Eastern Center Camp for 5 younger campers and 2 for 
older campers

$3,500  

390 Training for program coordinator, teen court summit, and 
vocational training for teens

$4,900  

410 Space ($10/square foot x 200 square feet) Camden Middle 
School

 $2,000

410 Office Space at Camden Extension ($10/sq ft at 100sq ft.)  $1,000

450 Insurance - Liability, Activity, Vehicle $1,400  

TOTAL $81,152 $13,456

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 12/31/2012
Department of Public Safety

Job Title
Annual Expense 

Wages
Annual In Kind 

Wages

Program Coordinator - full time $37,925  

TOTAL $37,925

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 12/31/2012
Department of Public Safety

SECTION VII:  BUDGET NARRATIVE LINE ITEM SUMMARY

Program: Camden County Youth Services

Fiscal Year: FY 23-24 Number of Months: 12
Cash In Kind Total

I.  Personnel Services $61,602 $10,096 $71,698
120 Salaries & Wages $37,925 $37,925
180 Fringe Benefits $20,577 $20,577
190 Professional Services* $3,100 $10,096 $13,196

*Contracts MUST be attached
II.  Supplies & Materials $7,150 $360 $7,510

210 Household & Cleaning $360 $360
220 Food & Provisions $1,200 $1,200
230 Education & Medical $4,250 $4,250
240 Construction & Repair $0
250 Vehicle Supplies & Materials $1,200 $1,200
260 Office Supplies and Materials $500 $500
280 Heating & Utility Supplies $0
290 Other Supplies and Materials $0

III. Current Obligations & Services $11,000 $11,000
310 Travel & Transportation $1,100 $1,100
320 Communications $600 $600
330 Utilities $0
340 Printing & Binding $0
350 Repairs & Maintenance $0
370 Advertising $100 $100
380 Data Processing $0
390 Other Services $9,200 $9,200

IV.  Fixed Charges & Other Expenses $1,400 $3,000 $4,400
410 Rental or Real Property $3,000 $3,000
430 Equipment Rental $0
440 Service and Maint. Contracts $0
450 Insurance & Bonding $1,400 $1,400
490 Other Fixed Charges $0

V.  Capital Outlay $0
[This Section Requires Cash Match]

510 Office Furniture & Equipment $0
530 Educational Equipment $0
540 Motor Vehicle $0
550 Other Equipment $0
580 Buildings, Structure & Improv. $0

Total $81,152 $13,456 $94,608

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



Form JCPC/PA 004 JCPC Program Application
Form structure last revised 12/31/2012
Department of Public Safety

SECTION VIII:  SOURCES OF PROGRAM REVENUE (ALL SOURCES)

FY 23-24 Camden County Funding ID:  715-XXXX
Sponsoring Agency: Camden County

Program: Camden County Youth Services

$64,812 DPS/JCPC Funds * This is the amount of your request on your application

20% Local Match Rate Is the Local Match Rate 10%, 20% or 30%?

$16,340 County Cash Camden County (Specify Source)

 Local Cash  (Specify Source)

 Local Cash  (Specify Source)

$13,456 Local In-Kind Camden County (Specify Source)

 Other  (Specify Source)

 Other  (Specify Source)

 Other  (Specify Source)

 Other  (Specify Source)

$94,608 TOTAL $12,962 $29,796

Required Local Match Match Provided

We, the undersigned, have reviewed this JCPC Program Application to be presented to the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council of this 
County in accordance with the procedures established by the local Juvenile Crime Prevention Council. Agencies seeking funding 
must be able to meet the applicable requirements of the North Carolina General Statutes, Administrative Code, and the Division of 
Adult Correction and Juvenile Justice. 

We understand and acknowledge that the approval process is first with the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council, second with the 
County Board of Commissioners, and the final authority with the Department of Public Safety, Division of Adult Correction and 
Juvenile Justice. 

All parties understand that the availability of funds is contingent upon the appropriation of those funds by the General Assembly of 
the State of North Carolina.

/DPSSignature/ /DPSdt/

Chair, County Board of Commissioners or County Finance Director Date

/JCPCSignature/ /JCPCdt/

Chair, Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Date

/ProgramSignature/
Erin Burke

/Programdt/
1/31/23

Program Manager Date

7.G.a

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

  (
20

23
-2

02
5 

JC
P

C
 G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.H 

Meeting Date:   April 03, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Stephanie Jackson 

 
Item Title   Auditor Engagement Letters and Contract for Camden 

County & TDA 

 

Attachments: Camden TDA Engagement Letter (PDF) 

Camden County 2022 - Engagement Letter (PDF) 

Camden County TDA Contract (PDF) 

Camden County contract to send (PDF) 

 

7.H

Packet Pg. 125



 

 

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A. 
4024 Oleander Drive Suite 3 
Wilmington, North Carolina 28403 
Telephone (910) 791-4872 
Fax (910) 239-8294 

 

January 1, 2023 

Camden County Tourism Development Authority 
P.O. Box 190 
117 North NC 343 
Camden, NC 27921 

 

We  are  pleased  to  confirm  our  understanding  of  the  services  we  are  to  provide  Camden  County  Tourism 
Development Authority for the year ended June 30, 2023. 

Audit Scope and Objectives 

We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business‐type activities, the aggregate 
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information, and the 
disclosures, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of Camden County Tourism Development 
Authority as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023.   Accounting standards generally accepted  in the United 
States of America (GAAP) provide for certain required supplementary information (RSI), such as management’s 
discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement Camden County Tourism Development Authority’s basic financial 
statements.  Such  information,  although  not  a  part  of  the  basic  financial  statements,  is  required  by  the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who  considers  it  to be an essential part of  financial  reporting  for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of 
our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to Camden County Tourism Development Authority’s 
RSI  in accordance with auditing  standards generally accepted  in  the United  States of America  (GAAS).  These 
limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic  financial statements. We will not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide 
us with  sufficient appropriate evidence  to express  an opinion or provide any assurance.  The  following RSI  is 
required by GAAP and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited:  

1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

2) Net Pension Asset/Liability RSI 

3) OPEB 

We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies Camden 
County  Tourism Development Authority’s  financial  statements. We will  subject  the  following  supplementary 
information  to  the auditing procedures applied  in our audit of  the  financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with GAAS, and we will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial statements 
as a whole [in a separate written report accompanying our auditor’s report on the financial statements OR in a 
report combined with our auditor’s report on the financial statements]:  

1) Budgetary Comparison Statements 

7.H.a

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 T

D
A

 E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

A
u

d
it

o
r 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

rs
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 &

 T
D

A
)



2) Combining Statements 

3) Individual Fund Statements 

4) Supporting Schedules 

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion about whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with 
GAAP; and report on the fairness of the supplementary  information referred to  in the second paragraph when 
considered in relation to the financial statements as a whole. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS 
and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements, 
including omissions, can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood 
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment of a reasonable user made based on the 
financial statements. 

The objectives also include reporting on internal control over financial reporting and compliance with provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, and award agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on 
the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS and the standards for financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing  Standards,  issued  by  the  Comptroller  General  of  the  United  States,  and will  include  tests  of  your 
accounting  records  of  Camden  County  Tourism  Development  Authority  and  other  procedures  we  consider 
necessary to enable us to express such opinions.  As part of an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government 
Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management. We will  also evaluate  the overall presentation of  the  financial  statements, 
including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) 
fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations 
that  are  attributable  to  the  government  or  to  acts  by management  or  employees  acting  on  behalf  of  the 
government. Because the determination of waste and abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not 
expect auditors to perform specific procedures to detect waste or abuse  in financial audits nor do they expect 
auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting waste or abuse. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and 
because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there  is an unavoidable risk that some 
material misstatements may not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in 
accordance with GAAS  and Government  Auditing  Standards.  In  addition,  an  audit  is  not  designed  to  detect 
immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material 
effect on the financial statements. However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any material 
errors,  fraudulent  financial  reporting, or misappropriation of assets  that comes  to our attention. We will also 
inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to 
our attention, unless clearly inconsequential  Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our 
audit and does not extend to any later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors.  

We will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, considered 
in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the government’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

7.H.a

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 T

D
A

 E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

A
u

d
it

o
r 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

rs
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 &

 T
D

A
)



 

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts, 
tests  of  the  physical  existence  of  inventories,  and  direct  confirmation  of  receivables  and  certain  assets  and 
liabilities by correspondence with selected customers, creditors, and financial  institutions. We will also request 
written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement.  

We may, from time to time and depending on the circumstances, use third‐party service providers in serving your 
account. We may share confidential information about you with these service providers but remain committed to 
maintaining  the  confidentiality  and  security  of  your  information.  Accordingly, we maintain  internal  policies, 
procedures, and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of your personal information. In addition, we will secure 
confidentiality agreements with all service providers to maintain the confidentiality of your information and we 
will  take  reasonable precautions  to determine  that  they have appropriate procedures  in place  to prevent  the 
unauthorized release of your confidential  information to others.  In the event that we are unable to secure an 
appropriate confidentiality agreement, you will be asked  to provide your consent prior  to  the sharing of your 
confidential  information with the third‐party service provider. Furthermore, we will remain responsible for the 
work provided by any such third‐party service providers.  

Our audit of financial statements does not relieve you of your responsibilities.  

Audit Procedures—Internal Control  

We will obtain an understanding of the government and its environment, including internal control relevant to 
the audit, sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to error or fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions.  Tests of controls may be performed to test 
the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that 
are material to the financial statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts 
and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if 
performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, 
no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as  fraud may  involve  collusion,  forgery,  intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or  the override of  internal 
control. An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or 
material  weaknesses.  Accordingly,  we  will  express  no  such  opinion.  However,  during  the  audit,  we  will 
communicate  to management  and  those  charged with  governance  internal  control  related matters  that  are 
required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards and Government Auditing Standards.  

Audit Procedures—Compliance  

As  part  of  obtaining  reasonable  assurance  about  whether  the  financial  statements  are  free  of  material 
misstatement, we will perform tests of Camden County Tourism Development Authority’s compliance with the 
provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. However, the objective of our audit 
will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on 
compliance issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

Other Services  

We  will  also  assist  in  preparing  the  financial  statements  and  related  notes  of  Camden  County  Tourism 
Development  Authority  in  conformity with  accounting  principles  generally  accepted  in  the United  States  of 
America  based  on  information  provided  by  you.  These  nonaudit  services  do  not  constitute  an  audit  under 
Government Auditing Standards and such services will not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards.  We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards. The other services 
are limited to the financial statement services previously defined. We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve 
the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that could be construed as assuming management 
responsibilities. 

7.H.a

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 T

D
A

 E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

A
u

d
it

o
r 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

rs
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 &

 T
D

A
)



You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and related notes and 
any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management representation 
letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements and related notes and that you have reviewed 
and approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility 
for them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably from senior 
management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; 
and accept responsibility for them. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for designing, 
implementing,  establishing,  and maintaining  effective  internal  controls  relevant  to  the  preparation  and  fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 
for evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; 
following laws and regulations; and ensuring that management and financial information is reliable and properly 
reported. Management  is  also  responsible  for  implementing  systems  designed  to  achieve  compliance  with 
applicable  laws,  regulations,  contracts, and grant agreements. You are also  responsible  for  the  selection and 
application of accounting principles, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements  and all 
accompanying  information  in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted  in the United States of 
America,  and  for  compliance with  applicable  laws  and  regulations  and  the provisions of  contracts  and  grant 
agreements.  

Management is responsible for making drafts of financial statements, all financial records, and related information 
available to us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information (including information from outside of 
the general and subsidiary ledgers). You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all information of 
which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as 
records, documentation, identification of all related parties and all related‐party relationships and transactions, 
and  other matters;  (2)  additional  information  that  we may  request  for  the  purpose  of  the  audit;  and  (3) 
unrestricted access  to persons within  the government  from whom we determine  it necessary  to obtain audit 
evidence.   At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations from you about your 
responsibilities for the financial statements; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; 
and other responsibilities required by GAAS and Government Auditing Standards. 

Your  responsibilities  include  adjusting  the  financial  statements  to  correct  material  misstatements  and  for 
confirming to us in the written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated 
by  us  during  the  current  engagement  and  pertaining  to  the  latest  period  presented  are  immaterial,  both 
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements of each opinion unit taken as a whole. 

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and 
for  informing us about all known or suspected  fraud affecting  the government  involving  (1) management,  (2) 
employees who have significant roles  in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations 
of  fraud  or  suspected  fraud  affecting  the  government  received  in  communications  from  employees,  former 
employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the 
government complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants and for taking timely 
and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, or contracts or 
grant agreements that we report.  

You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information, which we have been engaged to report 
on, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).  You agree 
to  include our report on the supplementary  information  in any document that contains, and  indicates that we 
have reported on, the supplementary  information. You also agree to [include the audited financial statements 
with any presentation of the supplementary information that includes our report thereon OR make the audited 
financial  statements  readily  available  to  users  of  the  supplementary  information  no  later  than  the  date  the 

7.H.a

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 T

D
A

 E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

A
u

d
it

o
r 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

rs
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 &

 T
D

A
)



 

supplementary information is issued with our report thereon]. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us 
in the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the supplementary information 
in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly 
presented  in accordance with GAAP; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from 
those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed 
to  us  any  significant  assumptions  or  interpretations  underlying  the  measurement  or  presentation  of  the 
supplementary information.  

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and 
recommendations. Management  is  also  responsible  for  identifying  and  providing  report  copies  of  previous 
financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits or other studies related to the objectives discussed 
in the Audit Scope and Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions 
taken to address significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, 
performance audits, or other studies. You are also responsible for providing management’s views on our current 
findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for 
the timing and format for providing that information. 

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other  

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we request 
and will locate any documents selected by us for testing.  

We  will  provide  copies  of  our  reports  to  the  Tourism  Development  Authority;  however,  management  is 
responsible for distribution of the reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or 
containing privileged and  confidential  information,  copies of our  reports are  to be made  available  for public 
inspection. 

The audit documentation for this engagement  is the property of Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., PA and 
constitutes confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation 
and appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to cognizant agency or 
its designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office 
for the purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. 
We will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under 
the  supervision of Thompson, Price,  Scott, Adams & Co., PA personnel.  Furthermore, upon  request, we may 
provide  copies of  selected  audit documentation  to  the  aforementioned parties. These parties may  intend or 
decide to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies.  

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report release 
date or  for any additional period requested by the cognizant agency.  If we are aware that a  federal awarding 
agency or auditee  is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the audit finding for 
guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation. 

Gregory Adams, CPA is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing 
the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them.  We expect to begin our audit on approximately July 1, 
2023 and to issue our reports no later than October 31, 2023. 

Our fee for these services is stated in the approved audit contract.  Any additional work out of the normal scope 
of  the audit will be at our  standard hourly  rates plus out‐of‐pocket costs  (such as  report  reproduction, word 
processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, etc.).  Our standard hourly rates vary according to the degree of 
responsibility involved and the experience level of the personnel assigned to your audit. Our invoices for these 
fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with our 
firm policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes 60 days or more overdue and may not be resumed 
until your account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be 
deemed to have been completed upon written notification of termination, even  if we have not completed our 
report. You will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out‐of‐pocket 

7.H.a

Packet Pg. 130

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 T

D
A

 E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

A
u

d
it

o
r 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

rs
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 &

 T
D

A
)



costs through the date of termination.  The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel 
and  the  assumption  that  unexpected  circumstances will  not  be  encountered  during  the  audit.    If  significant 
additional time  is necessary, we will discuss  it with you and arrive at a new  fee estimate before we  incur the 
additional costs. 

Reporting 

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of Camden County Tourism Development Authority’s 
financial statements. Our report will be addressed to management and those charged with governance of Camden 
County Tourism Development Authority. Circumstances may arise in which our report may differ from its expected 
form and content based on the results of our audit. Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it may be 
necessary for us to modify our opinions, add a separate section, or add an emphasis‐of‐matter or other‐matter 
paragraph to our auditor’s report, or if necessary, withdraw from this engagement. If our opinions are other than 
unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the 
audit or are unable to form or have not formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or  issue reports, or 
we may withdraw from this engagement.  

We will  also provide  a  report  (that does not  include  an opinion) on  internal  control  related  to  the  financial 
statements  and  compliance  with  the  provisions  of  laws,  regulations,  contracts,  and  grant  agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by Government 
Auditing Standards. The report on  internal control and on compliance and other matters will state (1) that the 
purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and compliance, and the results 
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control on compliance, 
and (2) that the report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. The report will also state that the report is not suitable 
for any other purpose. If during our audit we become aware that Camden County Tourism Development Authority 
is subject to an audit requirement that is not encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we will communicate 
to management and those charged with governance that an audit  in accordance with U.S. generally accepted 
auditing standards and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards may not 
satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements. 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Camden County Tourism Development Authority and believe 
this letter accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let 
us know. If you agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the attached copy 
and return it to us.  

Very truly yours, 
 
 

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., PA  

 

RESPONSE: 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Camden County Tourism Development Authority.  

Management signature:      
Title:      
Date:      
 

Governance signature:      
Title:      
Date:      

7.H.a

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 T

D
A

 E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

A
u

d
it

o
r 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

rs
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 &

 T
D

A
)



 

 

7.H.a

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 T

D
A

 E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

A
u

d
it

o
r 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

rs
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 &

 T
D

A
)



  

 

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A. 
4024 Oleander Drive Suite 3 
Wilmington, North Carolina 28403 
Telephone (910) 791-4872 
Fax (910) 239-8294 

 

January 1, 2023 

Camden County 
P.O. Box 190 
117 North NC 343 
Camden, NC 27921 

 

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Camden County for the year ended 
June 30, 2023. 

Audit Scope and Objectives 

We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business‐type activities, the aggregate 
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information, including 
the disclosures, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements, of Camden County as of and for the 
year ended  June 30, 2023. Accounting  standards  generally  accepted  in  the United  States of America  (GAAP) 
provide  for  certain  required  supplementary  information  (RSI),  such  as management’s discussion  and  analysis 
(MD&A), to supplement Camden County’s basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements  in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to Camden 
County’s RSI  in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS). 
These  limited  procedures will  consist  of  inquiries  of management  regarding  the methods  of  preparing  the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the 
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do 
not provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The following 
RSI is required by GAAP and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited:  

1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

2) Net Pension Asset/Liability RSI 

3) OPEB 

We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies Camden 
County’s  financial  statements.  We  will  subject  the  following  supplementary  information  to  the  auditing 
procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such  information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used  to prepare the 
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures  in accordance 
with GAAS, and we will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a whole [in a separate 
written report accompanying our auditor’s report on the financial statements OR in a report combined with our 
auditor’s report on the financial statements].  

1) Schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 

7.H.b

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 2
02

2 
- 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

A
u

d
it

o
r 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

rs
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 &

 T
D

A
)



 

 

 

2) Budgetary Comparison Statements 

3) Combining Statements 

4) Individual Fund Statements 

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinions about whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity 
with GAAP,  and report on the fairness of the supplementary  information referred to  in the second paragraph 
when  considered  in  relation  to  the  financial  statements  as  a whole. Reasonable  assurance  is  a high  level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with  GAAS  and  Government  Auditing  Standards will  always  detect  a material misstatement when  it  exists. 
Misstatements,  including  omissions,  can  arise  from  fraud  or  error  and  are  considered material  if  there  is  a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment of a reasonable 
user made based on the financial statements. The objectives also include reporting on: 

 Internal control over financial reporting and compliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and  award  agreements,  noncompliance  with  which  could  have  a  material  effect  on  the  financial 
statements in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

 Internal control over compliance related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer of opinion) on 
compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards that could 
have  a  direct  and material  effect  on  each major  program  in  accordance  with  the  Single  Audit  Act 
Amendments of 1996 and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements and Single Audit  

We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS; the standards for financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the Single Audit Act Amendments of 
1996; and the provisions of the Uniform Guidance, and will include tests of accounting records, a determination 
of major program(s) in accordance with Uniform Guidance, and other procedures we consider necessary to enable 
us to express such opinions. As part of an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management. We will  also evaluate  the overall presentation of  the  financial  statements, 
including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) 
fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations 
that  are  attributable  to  the  government  or  to  acts  by management  or  employees  acting  on  behalf  of  the 
government. Because the determination of waste and abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not 
expect auditors to perform specific procedures to detect waste or abuse  in financial audits nor do they expect 
auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting waste or abuse. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and 
because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there  is an unavoidable risk that some 
material misstatements or noncompliance may not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned 
and performed in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed 
to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct 
and material effect on the financial statements or on major programs. However, we will inform the appropriate 
level of management of any material errors, any fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that 
come  to our attention. We will also  inform  the appropriate  level of management of any violations of  laws or 

7.H.b

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 2
02

2 
- 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

A
u

d
it

o
r 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

rs
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 &

 T
D

A
)



 

 

governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential.  We will include such matters 
in the reports required for a Single Audit. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our 
audit and does not extend to any later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors.  

We will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, considered 
in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the government’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts, 
tests  of  the  physical  existence  of  inventories,  and  direct  confirmation  of  receivables  and  certain  assets  and 
liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial institutions. We 
will also request written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement.  

We may, from time to time and depending on the circumstances, use third‐party service providers in serving your 
account. We may share confidential information about you with these service providers but remain committed to 
maintaining  the  confidentiality  and  security  of  your  information.  Accordingly, we maintain  internal  policies, 
procedures, and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of your personal information. In addition, we will secure 
confidentiality agreements with all service providers to maintain the confidentiality of your information and we 
will  take  reasonable precautions  to determine  that  they have appropriate procedures  in place  to prevent  the 
unauthorized release of your confidential  information to others.  In the event that we are unable to secure an 
appropriate confidentiality agreement, you will be asked  to provide your consent prior  to  the sharing of your 
confidential  information with the third‐party service provider. Furthermore, we will remain responsible for the 
work provided by any such third‐party service providers.  

Our audit of financial statements does not relieve you of your responsibilities.  

Audit Procedures—Internal Control  

We will obtain an understanding of the government and its environment, including internal control relevant to 
the audit, sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to error or fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain evidence 
that  is  sufficient  and  appropriate  to  provide  a  basis  for  our  opinions.    The  risk  of  not  detecting  a material 
misstatement resulting  from  fraud  is higher  than  for one resulting  from error, as  fraud may  involve collusion, 
forgery,  intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override of  internal control. Tests of controls may be 
performed  to  test  the effectiveness of certain controls  that we consider relevant  to preventing and detecting 
errors and  fraud that are material to  the  financial statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements 
resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial 
statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal 
control  and,  accordingly,  no  opinion will  be  expressed  in  our  report  on  internal  control  issued  pursuant  to 
Government Auditing Standards. 

As  required  by  the  Uniform  Guidance,  we  will  perform  tests  of  controls  over  compliance  to  evaluate  the 
effectiveness of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting material 
noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to each major federal award program. However, our 
tests will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on those controls and, accordingly, no 
opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance. 

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, we will communicate to 
management  and  those  charged  with  governance  internal  control  related matters  that  are  required  to  be 
communicated under AICPA professional standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance.  

Audit Procedures—Compliance  

As  part  of  obtaining  reasonable  assurance  about  whether  the  financial  statements  are  free  of  material 
misstatement,  we  will  perform  tests  of  Camden  County’s  compliance  with  provisions  of  applicable  laws, 

7.H.b

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 2
02

2 
- 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

A
u

d
it

o
r 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

rs
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 &

 T
D

A
)



 

 

 

regulations, contracts, and agreements, including grant agreements. However, the objective of those procedures 
will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance, and we will not express such an opinion in our report on 
compliance issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether  the auditee has complied with  federal statutes,  regulations, and  the  terms and conditions of  federal 
awards applicable to major programs. Our procedures will consist of tests of transactions and other applicable 
procedures described in the OMB Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance requirements that could 
have a direct and material effect on each of Camden County’s major programs. For federal programs that are 
included  in  the  Compliance  Supplement,  our  compliance  and  internal  control  procedures will  relate  to  the 
compliance requirements that the Compliance Supplement  identifies as being subject to audit. The purpose of 
these procedures will be to express an opinion on Camden County’s compliance with requirements applicable to 
each of its major programs in our report on compliance issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance. 

Other Services  

We will also assist in preparing the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related 
notes of Camden County  in  conformity with accounting principles generally accepted  in  the United States of 
America  and  the Uniform Guidance  based  on  information  provided  by  you.  These  nonaudit  services  do  not 
constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such services will not be conducted in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards. We will perform  the services  in accordance with applicable professional 
standards. The other services are limited to the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, 
and related notes services previously defined. We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse 
to perform any procedure or take any action that could be construed as assuming management responsibilities. 

You agree to assume all management responsibilities for the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of 
federal  awards,  and  related  notes,  and  any  other  nonaudit  services  we  provide.  You  will  be  required  to 
acknowledge in the management representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements, 
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes and that you have reviewed and approved the 
financial statements, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes prior to their issuance and 
have accepted  responsibility  for  them. Further, you agree  to oversee  the nonaudit services by designating an 
individual,  preferably  from  senior management, with  suitable  skill,  knowledge,  or  experience;  evaluate  the 
adequacy and results of those services; and accept responsibility for them. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements and Single Audit  

Our  audit will  be  conducted  on  the  basis  that  you  acknowledge  and  understand  your  responsibility  for  (1) 
designing, implementing, establishing, and maintaining effective internal controls relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
including  internal  controls over  federal  awards,  and  for evaluating  and monitoring ongoing  activities  to help 
ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; (2) following laws and regulations; (3) ensuring that there 
is  reasonable  assurance  that  government  programs  are  administered  in  compliance  with  compliance 
requirements; and  (4) ensuring  that management and  financial  information  is  reliable and properly  reported. 
Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, 
regulations,  contracts,  and  grant  agreements.  You  are  also  responsible  for  the  selection  and  application  of 
accounting  principles;  for  the  preparation  and  fair  presentation  of  the  financial  statements,  schedule  of 
expenditures  of  federal  awards,  and  all  accompanying  information  in  conformity with  accounting  principles 
generally accepted  in  the United States of America; and  for  compliance with applicable  laws and  regulations 
(including  federal  statutes),  rules,  and  the  provisions  of  contracts  and  grant  agreements  (including  award 
agreements).  Your  responsibilities  also  include  identifying  significant  contractor  relationships  in  which  the 
contractor has responsibility for program compliance and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. 

You are also responsible for making drafts of financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, all 
financial  records,  and  related  information  available  to  us  and  for  the  accuracy  and  completeness  of  that 

7.H.b

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 2
02

2 
- 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

A
u

d
it

o
r 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

rs
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 &

 T
D

A
)



 

 

information (including information from outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers). You are also responsible 
for providing us with (1) access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, identification of all related parties 
and all related‐party relationships and transactions, and other matters; (2) access to personnel, accounts, books, 
records, supporting documentation, and other  information as needed  to perform an audit under  the Uniform 
Guidance; (3) additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit; and (4) unrestricted access 
to  persons within  the  government  from whom we  determine  it  necessary  to  obtain  audit  evidence.  At  the 
conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations from you about the financial statements; 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards; federal award programs; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements; and related matters. 

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming 
to us in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by 
us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually 
and in the aggregate, to the financial statements of each opinion unit taken as a whole. 

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and 
for  informing us about all known or suspected  fraud affecting  the government  involving  (1) management,  (2) 
employees who have significant roles  in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations 
of  fraud  or  suspected  fraud  affecting  the  government  received  in  communications  from  employees,  former 
employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the 
government  complies  with  applicable  laws,  regulations,  contracts,  agreements,  and  grants.  You  are  also 
responsible for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements that we report. Additionally, as required by the Uniform Guidance, 
it is management’s responsibility to evaluate and monitor noncompliance with federal statutes, regulations, and 
the terms and conditions of federal awards; take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified 
including noncompliance identified in audit findings; promptly follow up and take corrective action on reported 
audit findings; and prepare a summary schedule of prior audit findings and a separate corrective action plan. The 
summary schedule of prior audit findings should be available for our review on July 1, 2023.  

You  are  responsible  for  identifying  all  federal  awards  received  and  understanding  and  complying  with  the 
compliance requirements and for the preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (including 
notes and noncash assistance received, and COVID‐19‐related concepts, such as  lost revenues,  if applicable)  in 
conformity with the Uniform Guidance. You agree to include our report on the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards in any document that contains, and indicates that we have reported on, the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards. You also agree to [include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the schedule 
of expenditures of federal awards that  includes our report thereon OR make the audited financial statements 
readily available to intended users of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards no later than the date the 
schedule  of  expenditures  of  federal  awards  is  issued with  our  report  thereon].  Your  responsibilities  include 
acknowledging  to us  in  the written  representation  letter  that  (1) you are  responsible  for presentation of  the 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; (2) you believe the schedule 
of expenditures of federal awards, including its form and content, is stated fairly in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period 
(or,  if  they  have  changed,  the  reasons  for  such  changes);  and  (4)  you  have  disclosed  to  us  any  significant 
assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards. 

You  are  also  responsible  for  the  preparation  of  the  other  supplementary  information, which we  have  been 
engaged  to  report on,  in  conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles  (GAAP). You agree  to 
include our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains, and indicates that we have 
reported on, the supplementary information. You also agree to [include the audited financial statements with any 
presentation of the supplementary information that includes our report thereon OR make the audited financial 

7.H.b

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 2
02

2 
- 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

A
u

d
it

o
r 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

rs
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 &

 T
D

A
)



 

 

 

statements readily available to users of the supplementary information no later than the date the supplementary 
information is issued with our report thereon]. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written 
representation  letter  that  (1)  you  are  responsible  for  presentation  of  the  supplementary  information  in 
accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe the supplementary  information,  including  its form and content,  is fairly 
presented  in accordance with GAAP; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from 
those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed 
to  us  any  significant  assumptions  or  interpretations  underlying  the  measurement  or  presentation  of  the 
supplementary information.  

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and 
recommendations. Management  is  also  responsible  for  identifying  and  providing  report  copies  of  previous 
financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies related to the objectives discussed 
in the Audit Scope and Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions 
taken to address significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, 
performance audits, or studies. You are also responsible for providing management’s views on our current findings, 
conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions for the report, and for the timing 
and format for providing that information.  

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other  

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we request 
and will locate any documents selected by us for testing.  

At the conclusion of the engagement, we will complete the appropriate sections of the Data Collection Form that 
summarizes our audit findings. It is management’s responsibility to electronically submit the reporting package 
(including  financial  statements,  schedule of expenditures of  federal awards,  summary  schedule of prior audit 
findings, auditor’s reports, and corrective action plan) along with the Data Collection Form to the federal audit 
clearinghouse. We will coordinate with you the electronic submission and certification. The Data Collection Form 
and the reporting package must be submitted within the earlier of 30 calendar days after receipt of the auditor’s 
reports or nine months after the end of the audit period. 

We will provide copies of our reports to the county; however, management is responsible for distribution of the 
reports  and  the  financial  statements.  Unless  restricted  by  law  or  regulation,  or  containing  privileged  and 
confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection. 

The audit documentation for this engagement  is the property of Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., PA and 
constitutes confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation 
and appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to Cognizant Agency or 
its designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office 
for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. 
We will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under 
the  supervision of Thompson, Price,  Scott, Adams & Co., PA personnel.  Furthermore, upon  request, we may 
provide  copies of  selected audit documentation  to  the aforementioned parties. These parties may  intend, or 
decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies.  

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report release 
date or for any additional period requested by the [Name of Cognizant Agency, Oversight Agency for Audit, or 
Pass‐through Entity]. If we are aware that a federal awarding agency, pass‐through entity, or auditee is contesting 
an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the 
audit documentation. 

Gregory Adams, CPA is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing 
the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them.  We expect to begin our audit on approximately July 1, 
2023 and to issue our reports no later than October 31, 2023. 

7.H.b

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 2
02

2 
- 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

A
u

d
it

o
r 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

rs
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 &

 T
D

A
)



 

 

Our fee for these services is stated in the approved audit contract.  Any additional work out of the normal scope 
of  the audit will be at our  standard hourly  rates plus out‐of‐pocket costs  (such as  report  reproduction, word 
processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, etc.).  Our standard hourly rates vary according to the degree of 
responsibility involved and the experience level of the personnel assigned to your audit. Our invoices for these 
fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with our 
firm policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes 60 days or more overdue and may not be resumed 
until your account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be 
deemed to have been completed upon written notification of termination, even  if we have not completed our 
report. You will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out‐of‐pocket 
costs through the date of termination.  The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel 
and  the  assumption  that  unexpected  circumstances will  not  be  encountered  during  the  audit.    If  significant 
additional time  is necessary, we will discuss  it with you and arrive at a new  fee estimate before we  incur the 
additional costs. 

Reporting 

We will issue written reports upon completion of our Single Audit. Our reports will be addressed to management 
and  the governing body of Camden County.   Circumstances may arise  in which our  report may differ  from  its 
expected form and content based on the results of our audit. Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it 
may be necessary for us to modify our opinions, add a separate section, or add an emphasis‐of‐matter or other‐
matter paragraph to our auditor’s report, or  if necessary, withdraw from this engagement.  If our opinions are 
other  than unmodified, we will discuss  the  reasons with you  in advance.  If,  for any  reason, we are unable  to 
complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or 
issue reports, or we may withdraw from this engagement.  

The Government Auditing Standards report on  internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and 
other matters will state that (1) the purpose of the report  is solely to describe the scope of testing of  internal 
control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s  internal  control  or  on  compliance,  and  (2)  the  report  is  an  integral  part  of  an  audit  performed  in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. The 
Uniform Guidance report on internal control over compliance will state that the purpose of the report on internal 
control over compliance  is solely to describe the scope of  testing of  internal control over compliance and  the 
results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Both reports will state that the report 
is not suitable for any other purpose.  

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Camden County and believe this letter accurately summarizes 
the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree with the terms 
of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the attached copy and return it to us.  

Very truly yours, 

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., PA  

RESPONSE: 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Camden County.  

Management signature:      
Title:      
Date:      
Governance signature:      
Title:      
Date:      
 

7.H.b

Packet Pg. 139

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 2
02

2 
- 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

r 
 (

A
u

d
it

o
r 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

rs
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 &

 T
D

A
)



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /2  

The 

of 

and 

and 

for 

Primary Government Unit, together with DPCU (if applicable), hereinafter referred to as Governmental Unit(s) 

Auditor Name 

Auditor Address 

Hereinafter referred to as Auditor 

hereby agree as follows: 

Must be within four months of FYE 

The Auditor shall audit all statements and disclosures required by U.S. generally accepted auditing
standards (GAAS) and additional required legal statements and disclosures of all funds and/or divisions of the
Governmental Unit(s). The non-major combining, and individual fund statements and schedules shall be
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and an opinion shall
be rendered in relation to (as applicable) the governmental activities, the business- type activities, the aggregate 
DPCUs, each major governmental and enterprise fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information (non-
major government and enterprise funds, the internal service fund type, and the fiduciary fund types).

At a minimum, the Auditor shall conduct audit and render report in accordance with GAAS. The
Auditor shall perform the audit in accordance with Government Auditing Standards if 

.
Uniform Administration Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
 (Uniform Guidance) the State Single Audit Implementation Act  This audit and all associated audit

documentation may be subject to review by Federal and State agencies in accordance with Federal and State
laws, including the staffs of the Office of State Auditor (OSA) and the Local Government Commission (LGC). If
the audit requires a federal single audit  the Uniform Guidance (§200.501), it is
recommended that the Auditor and Governmental Unit(s) jointly agree, in advance of the execution of this
contract, which party is responsible for submission of the audit and the accompanying data collection form to
the Federal Audit Clearinghouse as required under the Uniform Guidance (§200.512).

Page 1

Governing Board 

Primary Government Unit

Discretely Presented Component Unit (DPCU) (if applicable) 

Fiscal Year Ending  

Camden County Tourist Development Authority

NA

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co. PA

4024 Oleander Drive, Suite 103, Wilmington, NC 28403

06/30/23 10/31/23

7.H.c

Packet Pg. 140

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 T
D

A
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

A
u

d
it

o
r 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

rs
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 &

 T
D

A
)



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20  

If an entity is determined to be a component of another government as defined by the group audit
standards, the entity’s auditor shall make a good faith effort to comply in a timely manner with the requests of
the group auditor in accordance with AU-6 §600.41 - §600.42.

This contract contemplates an unmodified opinion being rendered. If during the process of conducting
the audit, the Auditor determines that it will not be possible to render an unmodified opinion on the financial
statements of the unit, the Auditor shall contact the LGC taff to discuss the circumstances leading to that
conclusion as soon as is practical and before the final report is issued. The audit shall include such tests of the
accounting records and such other auditing procedures as are considered by the Auditor to be necessary in the
circumstances. Any limitations or restrictions in scope which would lead to a qualification should be fully
explained in an attachment to this contract.

If this audit engagement is subject to the standards for audit as defined in Government Auditing
Standards, 201  revision, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, then by accepting this
engagement, the Auditor warrants that he/she has met the requirements for a peer review and continuing
education as specified in Government Auditing Standards. The Auditor agrees to provide a copy of the most
recent peer review report to the Governmental Unit(s) and the Secretary of the LGC prior to the execution of an
audit contract. Subsequent submissions of the report are required only upon report expiration or upon auditor’s
receipt of an updated peer review report. If the audit firm received a peer review rating other than pass, the
Auditor shall not contract with the Governmental Unit(s) without first contacting the Secretary of the LGC for a
peer review analysis that may result in additional contractual requirements.
If the audit engagement is not subject to Government A  Standards or if financial statements are not 
prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and fail to include all 
disclosures required by GAAP, the Auditor shall provide an explanation as to why in an attachment to this 
contract or in an amendment. 

It is agreed that time is of the essence in this contract. All audits are to be performed and the report of
audit submitted to LGC aff within four months of fiscal year end. If it becomes necessary to amend th

, an amended contract along with a written
explanation of the  shall be submitted to the Secretary of the LGC for approval.

Page 2 

7.H.c

Packet Pg. 141

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 T
D

A
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

A
u

d
it

o
r 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

rs
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 &

 T
D

A
)



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20  

t  agencies or other organizations)
as required under the Federal and State Single Audit Acts. This does not include fees for any pre-issuance
reviews that may be required by the NC Association of CPAs (NCACPA) Peer Review Committee or NC State 
Board of CPA Examiners (see Item 13).

If the Governmental Unit(s) has/have outstanding revenue bonds, the Auditor shall submit to LGC taff,
either in the notes to the audited financial statements or as a separate report, a calculation demonstrating
compliance with the revenue bond rate covenant. Additionally, the Auditor shall submit to LGC taff
simultaneously with the Governmental Unit’s (Units’) audited financial statements any other bond compliance
statements or additional reports required by the authorizing bond documents, unless otherwise specified in the
bond documents.

After completing the audit, the Auditor shall submit to the Governing Board a written report of audit. This
report shall include, but not be limited to, the following information: (a) Management’s Discussion and Analysis,
(b) the financial statements and notes of the Governmental Unit(s) and all of its component units prepared in
accordance with GAAP, (c) supplementary information requested by the Governmental Unit(s) or required for full
disclosure under the law, and (d) the Auditor’s opinion on the material presented. The Auditor shall furnish the
required number of copies of the report of audit to the Governing Board upon completion.

If the audit firm is required by the NC State Board, the NCACPA Peer Review Committee, or the
Secretary of the LGC to have a pre-issuance review of its audit work, there shall be a statement in the
engagement letter indicating the pre-issuance review requirement. There also shall be a statement that the
Governmental Unit(s) shall not be billed for the pre-issuance review. The pre-issuance review shall be performed
prior to the completed audit being submitted to LGC Staff. The pre-issuance review report shall accompany the
audit report upon submission to LGC Staff

7.H.c

Packet Pg. 142

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 T
D

A
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

A
u

d
it

o
r 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

rs
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 &

 T
D

A
)



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20

requesting the return of records. Page 4 

If an approved contract needs to be modified or amended for any reason, the change shall be made in
writing pre-audited if the change includes a change in audit fee (pre-audit requirement does not apply to
ospitals). This amended contract shall be completed in full, including a written explanation of the change,

signed and dated by all original parties to the contract. It shall then be submitted to the Secretary of the LGC for
approval. No change to the audit contract shall be effective unless approved by the Secretary of the LGC, the
Governing Board, and the Auditor.

A copy of the engagement letter, issued by the Auditor and signed by both the Auditor and the
Governmental Unit(s), shall be attached to this contract, and except for fees, work, and terms not related to audit
services, shall be incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein as part of this contract. In case of conflict
between the terms of the engagement letter and the terms of this contract, the terms of this contract shall take
precedence. Engagement letter terms that conflict with the contract are deemed to be void unless the conflicting
terms of this contract are specifically deleted in Item  of this contract. Engagement letters containing
indemnification clauses shall not be accepted by LGC Staff.

Special provisions should be limited. Please list any special provisions in an attachment.

A separate contract should not be made for each division to be audited or report to be submitted. If a
DPCU is subject to the audit requirements detailed in the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act and
a separate audit report is issued, a separate audit contract is required. If a separate report is not to be issued
and the DPCU is included in the primary government audit, the DPCU shall be named along with the p
government on this audit contract. DPCU Board approval date, signatures from the DPCU Board chairman and
finance officer also shall be included on this contract.

The contract shall be executed, pre-audited (pre-audit requirement does not apply to hospitals), and
physically signed by all parties including Governmental Unit(s) and the Auditor, then submitted in PDF format to
the Secretary of the LGC.

The contract is not valid until it is approved by the Secretary of the LGC. The staff of the LGC shall notify
the Governmental Unit and Auditor of contract approval by email. The audit should not be started before the
contract is approved.

Retention of Client Records: Auditors are subject to the NC State Board of CPA Examiners’ Retention of
Client Records Rule 21 NCAC 08N .0305 as it relates to the provision of audit and other attest services, as well
as non-attest services. Clients and former clients should be familiar with the requirements of this rule prior to

7.H.c

Packet Pg. 143

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 T
D

A
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

A
u

d
it

o
r 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

rs
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 &

 T
D

A
)



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20  

All non-attest service(s) being performed by the Auditor that are necessary to perform the audit must be 
identified and included in this contract. The Governmental Unit shall designate an individual with the suitable 
skills, knowledge, and/or experience (SKE) necessary to oversee the services and accept responsibility for 
the results of the services performed. If the Auditor is able to identify an individual with the appropriate SKE, 
s/he must document and include in the audit workpapers how he/she reached that conclusion. If the Auditor 
determines that an individual with the appropriate SKE cannot be identified, the Auditor cannot perform both 
the non-attest service(s) and the audit. See "Fees for Audit Services" page of this contract to disclose the 
person identified as having the appropriate SKE for the Governmental Unit. 

Page 5 

E-Verify. Auditor shall comply with the requirements of NCGS Chapter 64 Article 2. Further, if Auditor
utilizes any subcontractor(s), Auditor shall require such subcontractor(s) to comply with the requirements of
NCGS Chapter 64, Article 2.

or all non-attest services,
the Auditor shall adhere to the independence rules of the AICPA Professional Code of Conduct and

 (as applicable). Financial statement preparation assistance
shall be deemed a “significant threat” requiring the Auditor to apply safeguards sufficient to reduce the threat
to an acceptable level. If the Auditor cannot reduce the threats to an acceptable level, the Auditor cannot
complete the audit. If the Auditor is able to reduce the threats to an acceptable level, the documentation of
this determination, including the safeguards applied, must be included in the audit workpapers.

7.H.c

Packet Pg. 144

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 T
D

A
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

A
u

d
it

o
r 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

rs
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 &

 T
D

A
)



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20  

The process for submitting contracts, audit reports and invoices is subject to change. Auditors and
units should use the submission process and instructions in effect at the time of submission. Refer to the
N.C. Department of State Treasurer website at 

Page  

7.H.c

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 T
D

A
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

A
u

d
it

o
r 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

rs
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 &

 T
D

A
)



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20

FEES FOR AUDIT SERVICES 

1. For all non-attest services, the Auditor shall adhere to the independence rules of the AICPA Professional
Code of Conduct (as applicable) and Government Auditing Standards,2018 Revision. Refer to Item 2  of
this contract for specific requirements. The following information must be provided by the Auditor; contracts
presented to the LGC without his information will be not be approved.
Financial statements were prepared by: Auditor Governmental Unit Third Party 

If applicable: Individual at Governmental Unit designated to have the suitable skills, knowledge, and/or 
experience (SKE) necessary to oversee the  non-attest  services  and  accept  responsibility  for  the 
results of these services:      
 Name:   Title :    Email Address: 

Fees may not be included in this contract for work performed on Annual Financial Information Reports
(AFIRs), Form 990s, or other services not associated with audit fees and costs. Such fees may be included in the
engagement letter but may not be included in this contract or in any invoices requiring approval of the LGC. See
Items 8  for details on other allowable and excluded fees.

Prior to submission of the completed audited financial report  applicable compliance reports
  (if required) the Auditor may submit invoices for

approval for services rendered , not to exceed 75% of the billings
 All invoices for services rendered

in an audit engagement as defined in 20 NCAC .0503 shall be submitted to the Commission for approval before
any payment is made. Payment before approval is a violation of law. (This  not applicable to contracts

VERNMENT FEES
Primary Government Unit 

Audit Fee $ 

Additional Fees Not Included in Audit Fee: 

Fee per Major Program $ 

Writing Financial Statements $ 
All Other Non-Attest Services $ 

DPCU FEES (if applicable) 
Discretely Presented Component Unit 

Audit Fee $ 

Additional Fees Not Included in Audit Fee: 

Fee per Major Program $ 

Writing Financial Statements $ 

All Other Non-Attest Services $ 

Page  

  

✔

Stephanie Jackson Stephanie Jackson /Finance sjackson@camdencaountync.gov

Camden County Tourist Development Authority

1800.00

3,000.00 if applicable

NA

7.H.c

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 T
D

A
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

A
u

d
it

o
r 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

rs
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 &

 T
D

A
)



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev.

Page

SIGNATURE PAGE

AUDIT FIRM

Audit Firm

Authorized Firm Representative (typed or printed) Signature

Date Email Address

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT

Governmental Unit

Date Primary Government Unit Governing Board Approved Audit Contract
(G.S. 59-34(a) or G.S.115C-447(a))

Mayor/Chairperson (typed or printed) Signature

Date Email Address

Chair of Audit Committee (typed or printed, or “NA”) Signature

Date Email Address

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT – PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICAT

Required by G.S. 159-28(a1) or G.S. 115C-441(a1)

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act or by the School Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

Primary Governmental Unit Finance Officer (typed or printed) Signature

Date of Pre-Audit Certificate Email Address

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co. PA

Gregory S Adams, CPA

gadams@tpsacpas.com

Camden County Tourist Development Authority

Sarah Hill, Chairperson

shill@camdencountync.gov

NA

Stephanie Jackson

sjackson@camdencaountync.gov

7.H.c

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 T
D

A
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

A
u

d
it

o
r 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

rs
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 &

 T
D

A
)



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev. /20

Page

SIGNATURE PAGE – DPCU
(complete only if applicable)

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

DPCU

Date DPCU Governing Board Approved Audit 
Contract (Ref: G.S. 159-34(a) or G.S. 115C-447(a))

Chairperson (typed or printed) Signature

Date Email Address

Chair of Audit Committee (typed or printed, or “NA”) Signature

Date Email Address

DPCU – PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE

Required by G.S. 159-28(a1) or G.S. 115C-441(a1

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act or by the School Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

 Finance Officer (typed or printed) Signature

Date of Pre-Audit Certificate Email Address

NA

PRINT

7.H.c

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 T
D

A
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

A
u

d
it

o
r 

E
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
L

et
te

rs
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 &

 T
D

A
)



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /2  

The 

of 

and 

and 

for 

Primary Government Unit, together with DPCU (if applicable), hereinafter referred to as Governmental Unit(s) 

Auditor Name 

Auditor Address 

Hereinafter referred to as Auditor 

hereby agree as follows: 

Must be within four months of FYE 

The Auditor shall audit all statements and disclosures required by U.S. generally accepted auditing
standards (GAAS) and additional required legal statements and disclosures of all funds and/or divisions of the
Governmental Unit(s). The non-major combining, and individual fund statements and schedules shall be
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and an opinion shall
be rendered in relation to (as applicable) the governmental activities, the business- type activities, the aggregate 
DPCUs, each major governmental and enterprise fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information (non-
major government and enterprise funds, the internal service fund type, and the fiduciary fund types).

At a minimum, the Auditor shall conduct audit and render report in accordance with GAAS. The
Auditor shall perform the audit in accordance with Government Auditing Standards if 

.
Uniform Administration Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
 (Uniform Guidance) the State Single Audit Implementation Act  This audit and all associated audit

documentation may be subject to review by Federal and State agencies in accordance with Federal and State
laws, including the staffs of the Office of State Auditor (OSA) and the Local Government Commission (LGC). If
the audit requires a federal single audit  the Uniform Guidance (§200.501), it is
recommended that the Auditor and Governmental Unit(s) jointly agree, in advance of the execution of this
contract, which party is responsible for submission of the audit and the accompanying data collection form to
the Federal Audit Clearinghouse as required under the Uniform Guidance (§200.512).

Page 1

Governing Board 

Primary Government Unit

Discretely Presented Component Unit (DPCU) (if applicable) 

Fiscal Year Ending  

Camden County

NA

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co. PA

4024 Oleander Drive, Suite 103, Wilmington, NC 28403

06/30/23 10/31/23

7.H.d

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 c
o

n
tr

ac
t 

to
 s

en
d

  (
A

u
d

it
o

r 
E

n
g

ag
em

en
t 

L
et

te
rs

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
fo

r 
C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 &
 T

D
A

)



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20  

If an entity is determined to be a component of another government as defined by the group audit
standards, the entity’s auditor shall make a good faith effort to comply in a timely manner with the requests of
the group auditor in accordance with AU-6 §600.41 - §600.42.

This contract contemplates an unmodified opinion being rendered. If during the process of conducting
the audit, the Auditor determines that it will not be possible to render an unmodified opinion on the financial
statements of the unit, the Auditor shall contact the LGC taff to discuss the circumstances leading to that
conclusion as soon as is practical and before the final report is issued. The audit shall include such tests of the
accounting records and such other auditing procedures as are considered by the Auditor to be necessary in the
circumstances. Any limitations or restrictions in scope which would lead to a qualification should be fully
explained in an attachment to this contract.

If this audit engagement is subject to the standards for audit as defined in Government Auditing
Standards, 201  revision, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, then by accepting this
engagement, the Auditor warrants that he/she has met the requirements for a peer review and continuing
education as specified in Government Auditing Standards. The Auditor agrees to provide a copy of the most
recent peer review report to the Governmental Unit(s) and the Secretary of the LGC prior to the execution of an
audit contract. Subsequent submissions of the report are required only upon report expiration or upon auditor’s
receipt of an updated peer review report. If the audit firm received a peer review rating other than pass, the
Auditor shall not contract with the Governmental Unit(s) without first contacting the Secretary of the LGC for a
peer review analysis that may result in additional contractual requirements.
If the audit engagement is not subject to Government A  Standards or if financial statements are not 
prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and fail to include all 
disclosures required by GAAP, the Auditor shall provide an explanation as to why in an attachment to this 
contract or in an amendment. 

It is agreed that time is of the essence in this contract. All audits are to be performed and the report of
audit submitted to LGC aff within four months of fiscal year end. If it becomes necessary to amend th

, an amended contract along with a written
explanation of the  shall be submitted to the Secretary of the LGC for approval.

Page 2 

7.H.d

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 c
o

n
tr

ac
t 

to
 s

en
d

  (
A

u
d

it
o

r 
E

n
g

ag
em

en
t 

L
et

te
rs

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
fo

r 
C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 &
 T

D
A

)



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20  

t  agencies or other organizations)
as required under the Federal and State Single Audit Acts. This does not include fees for any pre-issuance
reviews that may be required by the NC Association of CPAs (NCACPA) Peer Review Committee or NC State 
Board of CPA Examiners (see Item 13).

If the Governmental Unit(s) has/have outstanding revenue bonds, the Auditor shall submit to LGC taff,
either in the notes to the audited financial statements or as a separate report, a calculation demonstrating
compliance with the revenue bond rate covenant. Additionally, the Auditor shall submit to LGC taff
simultaneously with the Governmental Unit’s (Units’) audited financial statements any other bond compliance
statements or additional reports required by the authorizing bond documents, unless otherwise specified in the
bond documents.

After completing the audit, the Auditor shall submit to the Governing Board a written report of audit. This
report shall include, but not be limited to, the following information: (a) Management’s Discussion and Analysis,
(b) the financial statements and notes of the Governmental Unit(s) and all of its component units prepared in
accordance with GAAP, (c) supplementary information requested by the Governmental Unit(s) or required for full
disclosure under the law, and (d) the Auditor’s opinion on the material presented. The Auditor shall furnish the
required number of copies of the report of audit to the Governing Board upon completion.

If the audit firm is required by the NC State Board, the NCACPA Peer Review Committee, or the
Secretary of the LGC to have a pre-issuance review of its audit work, there shall be a statement in the
engagement letter indicating the pre-issuance review requirement. There also shall be a statement that the
Governmental Unit(s) shall not be billed for the pre-issuance review. The pre-issuance review shall be performed
prior to the completed audit being submitted to LGC Staff. The pre-issuance review report shall accompany the
audit report upon submission to LGC Staff

7.H.d

Packet Pg. 151

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 c
o

n
tr

ac
t 

to
 s

en
d

  (
A

u
d

it
o

r 
E

n
g

ag
em

en
t 

L
et

te
rs

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
fo

r 
C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 &
 T

D
A

)



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20

requesting the return of records. Page 4 

If an approved contract needs to be modified or amended for any reason, the change shall be made in
writing pre-audited if the change includes a change in audit fee (pre-audit requirement does not apply to
ospitals). This amended contract shall be completed in full, including a written explanation of the change,

signed and dated by all original parties to the contract. It shall then be submitted to the Secretary of the LGC for
approval. No change to the audit contract shall be effective unless approved by the Secretary of the LGC, the
Governing Board, and the Auditor.

A copy of the engagement letter, issued by the Auditor and signed by both the Auditor and the
Governmental Unit(s), shall be attached to this contract, and except for fees, work, and terms not related to audit
services, shall be incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein as part of this contract. In case of conflict
between the terms of the engagement letter and the terms of this contract, the terms of this contract shall take
precedence. Engagement letter terms that conflict with the contract are deemed to be void unless the conflicting
terms of this contract are specifically deleted in Item  of this contract. Engagement letters containing
indemnification clauses shall not be accepted by LGC Staff.

Special provisions should be limited. Please list any special provisions in an attachment.

A separate contract should not be made for each division to be audited or report to be submitted. If a
DPCU is subject to the audit requirements detailed in the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act and
a separate audit report is issued, a separate audit contract is required. If a separate report is not to be issued
and the DPCU is included in the primary government audit, the DPCU shall be named along with the p
government on this audit contract. DPCU Board approval date, signatures from the DPCU Board chairman and
finance officer also shall be included on this contract.

The contract shall be executed, pre-audited (pre-audit requirement does not apply to hospitals), and
physically signed by all parties including Governmental Unit(s) and the Auditor, then submitted in PDF format to
the Secretary of the LGC.

The contract is not valid until it is approved by the Secretary of the LGC. The staff of the LGC shall notify
the Governmental Unit and Auditor of contract approval by email. The audit should not be started before the
contract is approved.

Retention of Client Records: Auditors are subject to the NC State Board of CPA Examiners’ Retention of
Client Records Rule 21 NCAC 08N .0305 as it relates to the provision of audit and other attest services, as well
as non-attest services. Clients and former clients should be familiar with the requirements of this rule prior to

7.H.d

Packet Pg. 152

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 c
o

n
tr

ac
t 

to
 s

en
d

  (
A

u
d

it
o

r 
E

n
g

ag
em

en
t 

L
et

te
rs

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
fo

r 
C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 &
 T

D
A

)



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20  

All non-attest service(s) being performed by the Auditor that are necessary to perform the audit must be 
identified and included in this contract. The Governmental Unit shall designate an individual with the suitable 
skills, knowledge, and/or experience (SKE) necessary to oversee the services and accept responsibility for 
the results of the services performed. If the Auditor is able to identify an individual with the appropriate SKE, 
s/he must document and include in the audit workpapers how he/she reached that conclusion. If the Auditor 
determines that an individual with the appropriate SKE cannot be identified, the Auditor cannot perform both 
the non-attest service(s) and the audit. See "Fees for Audit Services" page of this contract to disclose the 
person identified as having the appropriate SKE for the Governmental Unit. 

Page 5 

E-Verify. Auditor shall comply with the requirements of NCGS Chapter 64 Article 2. Further, if Auditor
utilizes any subcontractor(s), Auditor shall require such subcontractor(s) to comply with the requirements of
NCGS Chapter 64, Article 2.

or all non-attest services,
the Auditor shall adhere to the independence rules of the AICPA Professional Code of Conduct and

 (as applicable). Financial statement preparation assistance
shall be deemed a “significant threat” requiring the Auditor to apply safeguards sufficient to reduce the threat
to an acceptable level. If the Auditor cannot reduce the threats to an acceptable level, the Auditor cannot
complete the audit. If the Auditor is able to reduce the threats to an acceptable level, the documentation of
this determination, including the safeguards applied, must be included in the audit workpapers.

7.H.d

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 c
o

n
tr

ac
t 

to
 s

en
d

  (
A

u
d

it
o

r 
E

n
g

ag
em

en
t 

L
et

te
rs

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
fo

r 
C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 &
 T

D
A

)



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20  

The process for submitting contracts, audit reports and invoices is subject to change. Auditors and
units should use the submission process and instructions in effect at the time of submission. Refer to the
N.C. Department of State Treasurer website at 

Page  

7.H.d

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 c
o

n
tr

ac
t 

to
 s

en
d

  (
A

u
d

it
o

r 
E

n
g

ag
em

en
t 

L
et

te
rs

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
fo

r 
C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 &
 T

D
A

)



CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS LGC-205 Rev. /20

FEES FOR AUDIT SERVICES 

1. For all non-attest services, the Auditor shall adhere to the independence rules of the AICPA Professional
Code of Conduct (as applicable) and Government Auditing Standards,2018 Revision. Refer to Item 2  of
this contract for specific requirements. The following information must be provided by the Auditor; contracts
presented to the LGC without his information will be not be approved.
Financial statements were prepared by: Auditor Governmental Unit Third Party 

If applicable: Individual at Governmental Unit designated to have the suitable skills, knowledge, and/or 
experience (SKE) necessary to oversee the  non-attest  services  and  accept  responsibility  for  the 
results of these services:      
 Name:   Title :    Email Address: 

Fees may not be included in this contract for work performed on Annual Financial Information Reports
(AFIRs), Form 990s, or other services not associated with audit fees and costs. Such fees may be included in the
engagement letter but may not be included in this contract or in any invoices requiring approval of the LGC. See
Items 8  for details on other allowable and excluded fees.

Prior to submission of the completed audited financial report  applicable compliance reports
  (if required) the Auditor may submit invoices for

approval for services rendered , not to exceed 75% of the billings
 All invoices for services rendered

in an audit engagement as defined in 20 NCAC .0503 shall be submitted to the Commission for approval before
any payment is made. Payment before approval is a violation of law. (This  not applicable to contracts

VERNMENT FEES
Primary Government Unit 

Audit Fee $ 

Additional Fees Not Included in Audit Fee: 

Fee per Major Program $ 

Writing Financial Statements $ 
All Other Non-Attest Services $ 

DPCU FEES (if applicable) 
Discretely Presented Component Unit 

Audit Fee $ 

Additional Fees Not Included in Audit Fee: 

Fee per Major Program $ 

Writing Financial Statements $ 

All Other Non-Attest Services $ 

Page  

  

✔

Stephanie Jackson Finance Officer/ Camden County sjackson@camdencountync.gov

Camden County

26500.00

3,000.00 if applicable

NA

7.H.d

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 c
o

n
tr

ac
t 

to
 s

en
d

  (
A

u
d

it
o

r 
E

n
g

ag
em

en
t 

L
et

te
rs

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
fo

r 
C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 &
 T

D
A

)



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev.

Page

SIGNATURE PAGE

AUDIT FIRM

Audit Firm

Authorized Firm Representative (typed or printed) Signature

Date Email Address

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT

Governmental Unit

Date Primary Government Unit Governing Board Approved Audit Contract
(G.S. 59-34(a) or G.S.115C-447(a))

Mayor/Chairperson (typed or printed) Signature

Date Email Address

Chair of Audit Committee (typed or printed, or “NA”) Signature

Date Email Address

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT – PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICAT

Required by G.S. 159-28(a1) or G.S. 115C-441(a1)

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act or by the School Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

Primary Governmental Unit Finance Officer (typed or printed) Signature

Date of Pre-Audit Certificate Email Address

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co. PA

Gregory S Adams, CPA

gadams@tpsacpas.com

Camden County

Ross Murnro, Chairperson

rmunro@camdencountync.gov

NA

Stephanie Jackson, Finance Officer

sjackson@camdencountync.gov

7.H.d

Packet Pg. 156

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 c
o

n
tr

ac
t 

to
 s

en
d

  (
A

u
d

it
o

r 
E

n
g

ag
em

en
t 

L
et

te
rs

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
fo

r 
C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 &
 T

D
A

)



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev. /20

Page

SIGNATURE PAGE – DPCU
(complete only if applicable)

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

DPCU

Date DPCU Governing Board Approved Audit 
Contract (Ref: G.S. 159-34(a) or G.S. 115C-447(a))

Chairperson (typed or printed) Signature

Date Email Address

Chair of Audit Committee (typed or printed, or “NA”) Signature

Date Email Address

DPCU – PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE

Required by G.S. 159-28(a1) or G.S. 115C-441(a1

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act or by the School Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

 Finance Officer (typed or printed) Signature

Date of Pre-Audit Certificate Email Address

NA

PRINT

7.H.d

Packet Pg. 157

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 c
o

n
tr

ac
t 

to
 s

en
d

  (
A

u
d

it
o

r 
E

n
g

ag
em

en
t 

L
et

te
rs

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
fo

r 
C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 &
 T

D
A

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 7.I 

Meeting Date:   April 03, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Erin Burke, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Set Public Hearing - Commerce Park Property Sale 

 

Attachments: D. T. Read Steel Co Inc_Legal Ad (DOCX) 

 
Public Hearing notice attached.   

7.I

Packet Pg. 158



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

TO APPROVE SALE OF CAMDEN COUNTY PROPERTY 

BY PRIVATE NEGOTIATION PURSUANT TO  

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT LAW 

 

The Camden County Board of Commissioners will conduct a public hearing at 7:00 p.m., 

or as soon thereafter as practical, on May 1, 2023, at the Board Meeting Room to receive public 

input on the conveyance of a fee simple interest in real property from the County of Camden 

(The County) to D. T. Read Steel Co., Inc. (The Company) consisting of six point seven two 

(6.72) acres more or less situate within the Camden Commerce Park, Camden, North Carolina, to 

exclude any wetlands. The value of the real property to be conveyed is thirty-five thousand 

dollars ($35,000) per acre.  The proposed consideration will be thirty-five thousand dollars 

($35,000) per acre.  The Company contemplates moving their corporate headquarters with the 

creation of 6-8 administrative full-time jobs and 75-150 seasonal jobs within an average annual 

payroll of $10 million. Jobs shall be maintained for at least ten (10) years.  The Board of 

Commissioners intends to approve this conveyance.  This Notice and the contemplated public 

hearing is in accord with N.C. General Statute 158-7.1 and N.C. General Statute 168-20.1. 

 

 

 

7.I.a

Packet Pg. 159

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

. T
. R

ea
d

 S
te

el
 C

o
 In

c_
L

eg
al

 A
d

  (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 C

o
m

m
er

ce
 P

ar
k 

P
ro

p
er

ty
 S

al
e)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 10.A 

Meeting Date:   April 03, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Tammie Krauss, Register of Deeds 

 Register of Deeds 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Register of Deeds Report 

 

Attachments: Register of Deeds Report (PDF) 

 

10.A

Packet Pg. 160



10.A.a

Packet Pg. 161

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

)



10.A.a

Packet Pg. 162

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 10.B 

Meeting Date:   April 03, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Kim Perry, 

 Library 

 Prepared by: Kim Perry 

 
Item Title   Library Report, 2/2023 

 

Attachments: 23-02 (DOCX) 

 

10.B

Packet Pg. 163



Camden County Public Library 

February 2023 Statistics 
 

Visitor Count 1,476 

Materials Check Outs & Renewals 3,188 

Cloud Library Check Out (ebooks & audiobooks) 138 (20% increase from 2/23) 

Computer/ Wireless Use 238/977 

Questions Answered 252 

Children’s Programs/Attendance 13/231 

Teen Program/Attendance 1/2 

Adult Programs/Attendance 2/18 

Outreach Programs/Attendance 0/0 

Study Room Usage/Attendance 43/69 

Meeting Room Usage/Attendance 3/24 

Days/Hours Open 23/187 

# Items in Collection 20,668 

Library Card Holders 2,440 

 

Comparison by Year 

2021-2023 

  
           

 

 

598

1002

1,476

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

2021 FEB 2022 FEB 2023 FEB

Attendance

2,043

2,897

3,188

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

2021 FEB 2022 FEB 2023 FEB

Circulation

10.B.a

Packet Pg. 164

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

3-
02

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 10.C 

Meeting Date:   April 03, 2023 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Fire Prevention Report 

 

Attachments: Fire Prevention Report (DOCX) 

 

10.C

Packet Pg. 165



February 2023 Monthly Report 
Fire Prevention 
Camden County 

 
 

Inspections 
 
Thompson Gas 
Coastal Kutts 
 
Completed 
 
Thompson Gas – emergency backup lighting 
Coastal Kutts 
 
Investigations 
 
None for the Month of February 
 
 
Plans Review 
 
No Permits Issued 
Reviewed plans for Solar Panel – pole mount – Camden County High School 
Harmony Baptist Church – hydrant location 
 
Special Projects/Training 
 
Smoke Detector Installation  - 916 N. Carolina Highway 343 South 
Fire Officer II – Albemarle Firemen’s Association School 
Camden County High School – reference to egress door in one of the classrooms and 
lockdown situations 
Camden County Sheriff’s Department – meeting in regards to pre-planning for active 
shooter at all of the high schools within the county. 
 
 
 
 

10.C.a

Packet Pg. 166

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

P
re

ve
n

ti
o

n
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

F
ir

e 
P

re
ve

n
ti

o
n

 R
ep

o
rt

)


	Agenda Packet
	Call to Order
	Closed Session - Consult with the County Attorney & Personnel
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance
	Pastor Tommy Berry, Shiloh Baptist Church

	1. Consideration of Agenda
	2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement
	3. Presentations
	A. Success Academy
	Printout: Success Academy

	B. Currituck Chamber of Commerce - Josh Bass
	Printout: Currituck Chamber of Commerce - Josh Bass


	4. Public Comments
	5. Old Business
	A. US Motto Action Committee Request - Erin Burke
	Printout: US Motto Action Committee Request - Erin Burke
	a. Motto Invitation for Officials
	b. Motto Biography-Press Release
	c. Resolution 2023-04-01 Supporting the Display of the US National Motto
	d. Motto All NC Locations Approved


	6. New Business
	A. Tax Report
	Printout: Tax Report
	a. february20230328104831199

	B. Board of Equalization & Review
	Printout: Board of Equalization & Review

	C. 2022 Advertisement of Tax Liens on Real Property
	Printout: 2022 Advertisement of Tax Liens on Real Property
	a. Tax lien for commissioners20230328102832995

	D. Camden Heritage Festival Date - Erin Burke
	Printout: Camden Heritage Festival Date - Erin Burke

	E. Sheriff's Office Salary Study - Erin Burke
	Printout: Sheriff's Office Salary Study - Erin Burke

	F. Tax & Planning Offices Relocation
	Printout: Tax & Planning Offices Relocation
	a. 04-03-23 Relocation  Renovation


	Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	7. Consent Agenda
	A. BOC Meeting Minutes
	Printout: BOC Meeting Minutes
	a. bocminutes_022223
	b. bocminutes_030623

	B. Budget Amendments
	Printout: Budget Amendments
	a. 22-23 BA 033 Grants Funds for the Fire Departments
	b. 22-23 BA 034 Open Position & Add'l Funds for JCPC Van

	C. School Budget Amendments
	Printout: School Budget Amendments
	A. School Budget Amendments

	D. Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	Printout: Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	a. Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	E. Tax Collection Report
	Printout: Tax Collection Report
	a. Tax Collection Report

	F. Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	a. Feb, 23 Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00

	G. 2023-2025 JCPC Grant Application
	Printout: 2023-2025 JCPC Grant Application
	a. 2023 JCPC Grant App

	H. Auditor Engagement Letters and Contract for Camden County & TDA
	Printout: Auditor Engagement Letters and Contract for Camden County & TDA
	a. Camden TDA Engagement Letter
	b. Camden County 2022 - Engagement Letter
	c. Camden County TDA Contract
	d. Camden County contract to send

	I. Set Public Hearing - Commerce Park Property Sale
	Printout: Set Public Hearing - Commerce Park Property Sale
	a. D. T. Read Steel Co Inc_Legal Ad


	8. County Manager's Report
	9. Commissioners' Reports
	10. Information, Reports & Minutes from Other Agencies
	A. Register of Deeds Report
	Printout: Register of Deeds Report
	a. Register of Deeds Report

	B. Library Report
	Printout: Library Report
	a. 23-02

	C. Fire Prevention Report
	Printout: Fire Prevention Report
	a. Fire Prevention Report


	11. Other Matters
	12. Adjourn

	Appendix
	3.A · Success Academy
	3.B · Currituck Chamber of Commerce - Josh Bass
	5.A · US Motto Action Committee Request - Erin Burke
	5.A.a · Motto Invitation for Officials
	5.A.b · Motto Biography-Press Release
	5.A.c · Resolution 2023-04-01 Supporting the Display of the US National Motto
	5.A.d · Motto All NC Locations Approved

	6.A · Tax Report
	6.A.a · february20230328104831199

	6.B · Board of Equalization & Review
	6.C · 2022 Advertisement of Tax Liens on Real Property
	6.C.a · Tax lien for commissioners20230328102832995

	6.D · Camden Heritage Festival Date - Erin Burke
	6.E · Sheriff's Office Salary Study - Erin Burke
	6.F · Tax & Planning Offices Relocation
	6.F.a · 04-03-23 Relocation  Renovation

	7.A · BOC Meeting Minutes
	7.A.a · bocminutes_022223
	7.A.b · bocminutes_030623

	7.B · Budget Amendments
	7.B.a · 22-23 BA 033 Grants Funds for the Fire Departments
	7.B.b · 22-23 BA 034 Open Position & Add'l Funds for JCPC Van

	7.C · School Budget Amendments
	7.C.A · School Budget Amendments

	7.D · Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	7.D.a · Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	7.E · Tax Collection Report
	7.E.a · Tax Collection Report

	7.F · Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	7.F.a · Feb, 23 Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00

	7.G · 2023-2025 JCPC Grant Application
	7.G.a · 2023 JCPC Grant App

	7.H · Auditor Engagement Letters and Contract for Camden County & TDA
	7.H.a · Camden TDA Engagement Letter
	7.H.b · Camden County 2022 - Engagement Letter
	7.H.c · Camden County TDA Contract
	7.H.d · Camden County contract to send

	7.I · Set Public Hearing - Commerce Park Property Sale
	7.I.a · D. T. Read Steel Co Inc_Legal Ad

	10.A · Register of Deeds Report
	10.A.a · Register of Deeds Report

	10.B · Library Report
	10.B.a · 23-02

	10.C · Fire Prevention Report
	10.C.a · Fire Prevention Report



